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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of

investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this
report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) record a total revenue of
approximately HK$31,420,000, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$8,653,000 or 21.6% as compared with that of approximately

HK$40,073,000 in 2019.

The reduction in the Group's revenue was mainly attributed by the decrease
in interest income from the money lending business (the “Money Lending
Business”) by approximately HK$6,350,000 which recorded a segment
revenue of approximately HK$10,690,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared with that of approximately HK$17,040,000 in 2019.
The lingering novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has significantly blow
to the Hong Kong economy in 2020 and thereby increased the risk and
uncertainties to Hong Kong lending market. In order to alleviate the negative
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, management has adopted a prudent
credit policy in conducting the Money Lending Business, as a result, only a
few new loans were approved during the year.

The reduction in the Group's revenue was also attributed by the decrease in
segment revenue from the game publishing, development of mobile game
and related intellectual property and platform, mobile application and data
solutions and provision of IT related solutions (the “Mobile Games and
Applications Business”) by approximately HK$2,599,000 which recorded
a segment revenue of approximately HK$327,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared with that of approximately HK$2,926,000 in
2019. The mobile games currently owned by the Group were developed
and launched several years ago. While new mobile games are still under
development, the existing mobile games are approaching the end of their
life-cycles and therefore generated only a low level of segment revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Segment revenue from the developing and marketing of the patented server-
based technology and the provision of communications software platform,
software related services and the custom-made software development
services (the "Software Platform Business”) recorded a slight increase
of approximately HK$296,000 to approximately HK$20,403,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as compared with that of approximately
HK$20,107,000 in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$11,699,000 which represented an increment
by over 154% as compared with that of approximately HK$4,598,000 in
2019. As one of the temporary measures to deal with the containment
policies associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had outsourced
more of its projects from Software Platform Business during the year.
The associated cost of outsourcing for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to approximately HK$9,167,000 (2019: approximately
HK$2,521,000) was accounted for as cost of sales.

Gross Profit

As a result of the aforementioned decrease in the total revenue and increase
in cost of sales, gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased by approximately 44.4% to approximately HK$19,721,000
(2019: approximately HK$35,475,000). The decreases in segment revenue
from the Money Lending Business and Mobile Games and Applications
Business caused the Group's profit margin also dropped from approximately
88.5% in 2019 to approximately 62.8% for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$75,411,000
(2019: approximately HK$58,257,000), which comprised administrative
expenses, research and development expenses and selling and distribution
expenses. The significant increase in overall expenses was mainly due to
the impairment losses on trade and other receivables, loans receivable and
interest receivables provided for during the year amounted to approximately
HK$27,616,000 in total (2019: approximately HK$4,970,000).

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, finance costs were approximately
HK$1,896,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,327,000), which comprised of
interest on interest-bearing borrowings and interest on lease liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Loss for the year

The consolidated net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$71,611,000,
representing an increase of approximately 16.5% as compared with that of
approximately HK$61,470,000 in 2019. The net loss for the year was mainly
attributable to the impairment losses on several items including goodwill,
intangible assets, trade and other receivables, loans receivable and interest
receivables provided for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group continued to focus on
three principal businesses, they are (i) Software Platform Business; (i) Money
Lending Business; and (iii) Mobile Games and Applications Business.

Software Platform Business

Despite the difficulties encountered in 2020, Software Platform Business
had performed satisfactorily and managed to achieve a slight increase of
approximately 1.5% in segment revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 and accounted for approximately 64.9% (2019: approximately 50.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. As
the market remains to be highly competitive and fast-changing, the Group
will continue to allocate adequate resources to meet the evolving industry
standards in satisfying customers’ demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Money Lending Business

The business environment in Hong Kong has rapidly and significantly
worsened during the year due to the lingering pandemic brought about by
the COVID-19. Faced with the unprecedented difficulties, the management
adopted a prudent credit policy in conducting the Money Lending Business
in order to reduce the risk of further impairment and bad debts. Only a
few new loans were approved by the management during the year ended
31 December 2020. As such, the Money Lending Business generated a
decrement of approximately 37.3% in segment revenue and contributed
approximately 34.0% (2019: approximately 42.5%) to the Group's total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. The deterioration of the
Group's loan portfolio followed by the deteriorated Hong Kong economy
also caused an increase of impairment losses on loans and interest receivables
to approximately HK$17,159,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: approximately HK$4,850,000). The Group expects that Hong Kong's
economy will remain challenging in the year 2021. To prepare itself in facing
the challenge, the Group will continue to adopt prudent credit policy and risk
management approach, instantly and effectively review and tighten the credit
policy in order to prevent more bad debts and losses which may be caused by
impairment thereof.

Mobile Games and Applications Business

In view of the increasing market competition, rising cost of producing new
games and rapid technological advancement of the mobile game industry
as well as the negative impact of the regulatory control imposed in the
PRC in 2018, the Board decided to maintain a more conservative business
and sales strategy for mobile games owned and under development by the
Group during the year in order to reduce the investment costs. It resulted in
a decrease in the segment revenue of the Mobile Games and Applications
Business by approximately 88.8% and contributed only approximately 1.0%
(2019: approximately 7.3%) to the Group's total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020. The deterioration of the financial performance of Mobile
Games and Applications Business caused additional impairment losses on
goodwill and intangible assets of approximately HK$38,558,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately HK$44,975,000). The
Board will cautiously monitor the changes in the market environment in the
mobile game industry and continue to seek for opportunities in other mobile
application markets with a view to improve the performance and value of the
segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group expects that the road to recovery would be
challenging. The fluctuating and unpredictability of the evolving pandemic
increased the risk of Hong Kong'’s economic and community recovery. While
the effect of the vaccine that rolled-out in the first quarter of 2021 still takes
time to prove. It is expected that the Group’s performance will inevitably be
affected. In facing the challenge, the Group will strictly adhere to its cost
control policy and swiftly adjust its business strategies in response to changes

of the external environment.

While the Group will become more cautious in the allocation of resources,
it will continue to seek potential investment opportunities that can create
synergies to our existing business segments, at the same time bringing
growth and long-term benefits to the Company and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group's main business operations and investments are in Hong Kong.
At 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$3,415,000 (2019: approximately HK$9,610,000). Most of
the cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group will closely monitor exchange rate movement and will take appropriate
activities to reduce the exchange risk.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2020, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$159,519,000 (2019: approximately HK$260,698,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$44,688,000 (2019: approximately
HK$57,979,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total liabilities
over total assets, was approximately 28.0% (2019: approximately 22.2%)
and the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 2.24 (2019: approximately 2.71). The Directors will continue
to take measures to further improve the liquidity and gearing position of the
Group.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant Investment
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had disposed of the
entire equity interests in several of its subsidiaries for a total consideration
of approximately HK$1,489,000. Details of the disposals are set out in note
29(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Except for the above, the Group did not have any other material acquisition,
disposal and significant investment during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each, of
which 1,272,640,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Use of Proceeds

As stated in the announcements dated 6 April 2018 and 25 April 2018,
the net proceeds of approximately HK$32,337,000 from the Placing
conducted in 2018 (the “Placing”) would be used as to (i) HK$10,000,000
for the development of the Money Lending Business; (i) HK$5,000,000
for the development of the Mobile Games and Applications Business; (iii)
HK$8,000,000 for identifying the potential investment in the environmental
related projects; and (iv) the remaining balance as general working capital
purposes. The net proceeds from the Placing brought forward from 2019 was
approximately HK$1,458,000. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
none of the proceeds had been applied for its intended use.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group consistently adopts a conservative treasury policy during its
development and generally finances its operations and business development
with internally generated resources and equity and/or debt financing activities
in order to maintain a healthy liquidity position. The Group also strives to
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluation of
the financial conditions of its clients of Money Lending Business. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the financial position of the Group
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and

commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange
exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Material Risk Factors
Details of the Group's financial risk and analysis are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2020, the land and buildings and a motor vehicle
of the Group at carrying amounts of approximately HK$30,583,000
and HK$1,326,000 (2019: approximately HK$34,707,000 and HK$Nil)
respectively were pledged to secure interest-bearing borrowings of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintained contingent liabilities that
are related to a corporate guarantee provided by the Company and its two
subsidiaries to a bank for the loans utilised by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two subsidiaries of the Company
leased two motor vehicles under finance leases at the interest rates of 3.5%-
4.8% per annum for terms of three and five years. The Company had issued
corporate guarantee in respect of the finance leases with the carrying amount
of approximately HK$2,158,000 as at 31 December 2019. The two relevant
vehicles were disposed in November 2020 and the corresponding leases were
fully settled. No corporate guarantee was therefore issued by the Company in
this respect as at 31 December 2020.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 56 employees (2019: 58
employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) were approximately HK$14,724,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately HK$18,570,000).

The Group’s remuneration policy is revised periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, company performance, individual qualifications
and performance, and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the
respective jurisdiction where the employees are employed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELRERS

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of
maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December
2020 except the CG Code provisions A.2.1, A2.7, A4.1, A6.7, E1.2 and
F.1.3 with considered reasons explained below.

Under the CG Code provision A.2.7, the chairman should at least annually
hold meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors.

Since the Company does not have the Chairman (“Chairman”) during the
year ended 31 December 2020, no meeting was held between the Chairman
and the INEDs without the presence of other Directors during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Under the CG Code provision E. 1.2, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting.

Since the Company does not have the Chairman during the year ended 31
December 2020, Mr. Chow Yik, the executive Director, has been elected by
other Directors present to act as the chairman of the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 9 June 2020 in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (“Articles”).

Under the CG Code provision F.1.3, the company secretary should report to
the board chairman and/or the chief executive.

Since the Company does not have the Chairman during the year ended 31
December 2020 and the new chief executive officer (the “CEOQ”) has not
been appointed following the resignation of Mr. Chan Kwun Chung as the
CEO on 1 April 2020, the company secretary of the Company reported to the
executive Directors since 1 April 2020.

Below are the major corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company with specific reference to the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company, overseeing
as well as the supervision of its business, approval of strategic plans and
monitoring the Company's performance. The Board delegates the day-to-
day operations to the executive Directors and management, while reserving
certain key matters for its approval.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors, of which
four are executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Yik, Mr. Chung Man Lai, Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Yao Tong and two are independent non-executive
Directors (the “INED(s)"), namely Mr. Leung Man Chun and Ms. Lam Yuen
Man Maria. There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors. The Directors’ biographical information
is set out in pages 29 to 31 under the section headed “Biographies of
Directors”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors and INEDs
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging
their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company and that the
current board size is adequate for its present operations. Each Director keeps
abreast of his responsibility as the Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals with
active participation of a majority of Directors, either in person or through

other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. There were 7 Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the year

ended 31 December 2020 were set out as follows:

BREEHEHE_Z_-Z

FE+-HA=+—H

HFERTZEFEERE RSN T

Attendance/eligible to attend

HERY, AERHERH
Board meeting General meeting
EEFE; REXE

Executive Directors
WITES
Mr. Chow Yik' 5/5 1Al
AL
Mr. Chung Man Lai? 5/5 0/1
BB
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa? 2/2 N/AT 3 F
RREESLLES
Mr. Yao Tong® N/AT 58 A N/A3E A
7S Gib e
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak® 5/5 171
RoKIS LS
Ms. Sin Pui Ying® 3/4 0/1
HAmE L e
Mr. Ng Kin Man’ 2/2 N/ATE
R E?
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung?® 2/2 N/ATNE
R B S A
Non-Executive Director
ERITES
Mr. Zheng Yonggiang® 717 0/1
211670 pa
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Attendance/eligible to attend

HERY SERHERY
Board meeting General meeting
EEg8E e
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIEHITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun 7/7 0/1
2Bt
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric'™® 717 01
BRRAESE
Dr. Lee G. Lam' 717 0/1
MERBIFEL
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria' 1/2 N/ATE
MR 12
Notes: o=
1. Mr. Chow Yik has been appointed as an executive Director on 1 April 2020 and 1. BWAER 2 _2FMNE—HEZEANTE
member of nomination committee on 11 May 2020. igﬁé\ ZCEFERR+—HEZTARRLES
HINE-C
2. Mr. Chung Man Lai has been appointed as an INED on 1 April 2020. He was then re- 2. EXBAERN B _FFNA—HESZERBIL
designated as executive Director on 15 September 2020. FEHITES - ﬁﬁﬁff\_’—?_’gfﬁhﬁ +AHRBFATE
APITESE-
3. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa has been appointed as an executive Director on 14 October 3. RREXEN_FTEL AT EOEERTRA
2020. TE=-
4. Mr. Yao Tong has been appointed as an executive Director and member of 4. PREAEER _—_ S5+ "/t éﬁfﬁﬂﬁ
remuneration committee and compliance officer on 7 December 2020. EEURFTNEEGHRERERE
5. Mr. Tsui Wing Tak has been appointed as an executive Director and member of 5. BAKEBRER-_S-EFMP— Jr/\ElfééEj%
remuneration committee on 28 April 2020. He subsequently appointed as compliance HITEERFTNEEEMB BEEN 2224
officer on 11 May 2020. AB+—H ?%%E%&ﬁif
He was then resigned as an executive Director, member of remuneration committee REBNR _Z2_ZF+_A=-HRENTES #
and compliance officer on 3 December 2020. MEEGMBRIERFEE-
6. Ms. Sin Pui Ying resigned as an executive Director on 15 September 2020. 6. % MELZTN B FAA+EBFENTE
7. Mr. Ng Kin Man has been appointed as member of each of the nomination committee 7. ERXEENR T _TFNA—AEZERRES
and remuneration committee and compliance officer on 1 April 2020. ZERRFMNEEG 2B RIEREE-
He resigned as an executive Director, member of each of the nomination committee BRZZ_ZEART—HBRERNTES RLZE
and remuneration committee and compliance officer on 11 May 2020. BeRITMNEEG 2B RIEREE-
8. Mr. Chan Kwun Chung resigned as an executive Director, CEO, member of each of the 8. BRESEER_S-F E ME—H®BERITE
nomination committee and remuneration committee and compliance officer on 1 April B THEH RREEERFMEEETZMER
2020. EREME
9. Mr. Zheng Yonggiang resigned as a non-executive Director on 1 January 2021. 9. %ﬂ@ﬁ?ﬁih T —F—PB—HEEENTE
10.  Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric resigned as an INED and member of each of the audit 10, BREBAEN_ZF_—F—F—HAREBEILIFN
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee on 1 January 2021. %%$&%KZ§§@ REEECHFNEEREEZ
=5
11.  Dr. Lee G. Lam resigned as an INED and member of audit committee on 1 March 1. MREBEIR_T_—F=F—HAREELIFR
2021. TEFREREZEEME
12.  Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria has been appointed as an INED on 15 September 2020 and 2. MEELXITHR_F_TFHA+AHEZERE

member of each of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee on 1 January 2021.

TIFITES I f: T_—E B -HEZED
ERZER RALERERFNEEEZME
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking into
account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the agenda
while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business.

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

On 1 October 2018, Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as the CEO.

Following the resignation of Mr. Chan Wai Kit and Mr. Chan Kwun Chung as
the deputy chairman and CEO of the Company on 1 November 2018 and 1
April 2020 respectively, the Company does not have Chairman and CEO for
the time being. However, the Board is of the view that the balance of power
and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises
experienced individuals who would from time to time discuss issues affecting
operations of the Company and the Group. This arrangement can still enable
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company's objectives efficiently and effectively. The Company will, at the
time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of the Chairman and

CEO respectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term. Currently, all the INEDs have
entered into letter of appointments with the Company for an initial term of
three years. The former non-executive Director, Mr. Zheng Yonggiang who
was appointed on 1 October 2018 and resigned on 1 January 2021 was not
appointed for a specific term. However, in accordance with the Articles, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting. Moreover, according to the Articles, all Directors newly
appointed to fill a casual vacancy are subject to election at the next following
general meeting following their appointments. The Board considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those prescribed by Code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code and therefore does not intend to take any

steps in this regard at the moment.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The CG Code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-executive
directors should, among others, attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There is satisfactory
attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general
meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 except that three
INEDs did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 9
June 2020 due to their other important engagements at the relevant time.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had three
INEDs in which at least one of them has appropriate professional accounting
or related financial management expertise in compliance with rules 5.05(1)
and 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Dr. Lee G. Lam as INED on 1 March 2021, the
Company has a total of six directors in which four are executive Directors and
two are INEDs. Hence, the number of INEDs of the Company has failed to
meet the minimum number required under rules 5.05(1) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company also no longer fulfils the requirement on the
minimum number of INEDs for the formation of audit committee stipulated
under rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is endeavouring
to identify suitable candidate within three months (i.e. on or before 31
May 2021) as soon as practicable to fulfils the above requirements. Further
announcement will be made by the Company as and when appropriate.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the INEDs are independent in accordance
with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has complied at all times with rules 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules that at least one of them has appropriate professional accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for setting
directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing the
risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently three committees,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist
the Board in supervising certain functions of the management. Nomination
Committee assists the Board by developing and formulating relevant
procedures in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs and making
recommendation to the Board on appointment of Directors. Each of the
Committees is established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Company’s website and GEM website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board regarding the terms of remuneration package payable to Directors
and senior management and on the the Company's policy and structure for
remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration of Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the prevailing market conditions, individual

experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company and
its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the Group’s affairs.
The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Ms. Lam
Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Yao Tong. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by an INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
Two meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HWEEEEEFR
SENEE

DREIT-REGHE -FHWE

TETEF+_A=+—HILEE

NETMREZH - ZEMEZLFEBEREIIMT

Attendance/
eligible to attend
FER#
Aﬁﬁ&r RE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIiERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman) 2/2
RXBRE (FFE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric’ 2/2
ERERE
Executive Directors
BiITESR
Mr. Yao Tong? N/A7E A3
wkims A
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak? 11
KIS EE?
Mr. Ng Kin Man* N/ATE
R S
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung® 1Al
i 728 8 51 4
Notes: Mtat
1. Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric resigned as an INED on 1 January 2021. 1. %gg%iﬁ?:@:—ﬁ—ﬁ —HBEBIIIER
TESH-
2. Mr. Yao Tong has been appointed as an executive Director on 7 December 2020. 2. %%%iﬁi\: Z_ZHE+ "Bt HEZEARIT
3. Mr. Tsui Wing Tak has been appointed as an executive Director on 28 April 2020 and 3. BAGRER _Z_TEMA-+/\BEDES
resigned as executive Director on 3 December 2020. gh%% R B BEt B HRARTE
4. Mr. Ng Kin Man has been appointed as member of remuneration committee on 1 4, ERXEER _T_TFNA—BESZER5HM
April 2020 and resigned as executive Director on 11 May 2020. %%@EK% MR ZEZRER A+ —BRERT
5. Mr. Chan Kwun Chung resigned as an executive Director and CEO on 1 April 2020. 5. BRESEER S _TFNA—HRENTES
e ATEAEE °
6. Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria has been appointed as member of remuneration committee 6. MBEEL TR T —F—HF—BEZEAHHN
on 1 January 2021. ZEEmMEe°
Summary of works TIEBER
During the year 2020, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the RIZZE2FE FNEZESEREFMNEES

remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of all
the Directors, reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the proposed Directors and the proposed re-
designation of Director in accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s
written terms of reference.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among, other things, reviewing
the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the Board at least
annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company; identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board having due regard to
the Board Diversity Policy; assessing the independence of INEDs; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors; as well as to review the
Board Diversity Policy and the Board Nomination Policy (as defined below), as
appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Ms. Lam
Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Chow Yik. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
an INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year. In
addition, the Nomination Committee also meets as it is required to consider
nomination related matters. Two meetings were held during the year ended
31 December 2020. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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REZEGHIEER VBT —RGFE UL
REZEENTNEERETER UEEIRAE
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—t+—BIEFERTMRGZH SHEZHES
REHWT

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE,
AERHERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIIERITES

Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)
BB E (F/E)

Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric’

EfRgiL

Executive Directors
WITES

Mr. Chow Yik?

B ) 5 A2

Mr. Ng Kin Man?
R A3

Mr. Chan Kwun Chung*
RS o
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Notes:
1. Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric resigned as an INED on 1 January 2021.
2. Mr. Chow Yik has been appointed as an executive Director on 1 April 2020 and

member of the nomination committee on 11 May 2020.

3. Mr. Ng Kin Man has been appointed as member of nomination committee on 1 April
2020 and resigned as an executive Director on 11 May 2020.

4. Mr. Chan Kwun Chung resigned as an executive Director and CEO on 1 April 2020.

5. Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria has been appointed as member of remuneration committee
on 1 January 2021.

Summary of works

During the year 2020, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board in light of the Board Diversity Policy,
assessed the independence of INEDs, reviewed and made recommendation
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring Directors, reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy and reviewed the
appointment of the nominated Directors and make recommendation to the
Board for approval, in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s written
terms of reference.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy in February 2019 regarding the
nomination, appointment, re-appointment of Directors and the nomination
procedure of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will select candidate for directorship based on
his/her character, integrity, professorial qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, and diversity of the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other criteria
that are appropriate for the business and corporate strategy of the Company.

For appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee evaluates
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship. For those qualified candidates,
recommendations are made to the Board. For re-election of the retiring
director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring Director and
the level of participation and performance on the Board and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as set out above.
Recommendation are then made to shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy regularly or at
any time necessary.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 1 September 2013. A
summary of this policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below.

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a numbers
of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered with the objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board's composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of services,
professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board Diversity
Policy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, evaluating the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems, reviewing the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting matters and ensuring the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements, monitoring
compliance with statutory and listing requirements and overseeing the
relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board. At least one member has an appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements
during the review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and senior
executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of the Audit
Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditor
and the management.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Man Chun and Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Chun.
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The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year. EZEEGESFRIVETURGZ -BEZ
Four meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2020. The TZTEF+ZR= HIEFERNBETER
attendance of each member is set out as follows: BEoSMEZHFEEREIINOT
Attendance/
eligible to attend
RE,
SEMHERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIJERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman) 4/4
RNBIE (F/E)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric’ 4/4
EREEE
Dr. Lee G. Lam? 4/4
MERBIFL2
Notes: izt -
1. Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric resigned as an INED on 1 January 2021. 1. ERBREEN 2 —F—A—BHEEBIIER
TESo
2. Dr. Lee G. Lam resigned as an INED on 1 March 2021. 2. MREBELR S —F=A—HEEBIIIER
TESo
3. Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria appointed as member of audit committee on 1 January 3. MEREZLTR T _—F—F—BEZEAEZ
2021. ZEEME-°
Summary of works TIEBER

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee reviewed
the financial reporting matters including the quarterly, interim and annual
results, made recommendations to the Board on the terms of engagement
and re-appointment of the external auditor, and reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems, and its other
duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG Code
and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group's preliminary
quarterly results, interim results and annual financial statements and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to review the
scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, internal audit matters and to review the financial and
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as
set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the policies of the
corporate governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set out
in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an annual
basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the audit fee.
The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit service (including
professional advice on taxation) for the year ended 31 December 2020
provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was HK$888,000 and HK$33,000
respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. Such
system is to safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It has been an important duty of the Board to conduct
a review of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the
system of the Group annually or at any time necessary. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’'s accounting and financial reporting
function, and training program and budget. The process use to review its
effectiveness includes identification, evaluation, management measures and
control and review.
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The Group has engaged an external independent consultant to conduct
the annual review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control
systems. Review of the Group's internal controls covering major operational,
financial and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions
of different systems has been performed on a systematic rotational basis
on the risk assessments of the operations and controls. No major issues on
the internal control system have been identified during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside Information in
respect of procedures and internal control for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to rule 17.10 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provision under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Directors are
continuously updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
directors will be arranged at the expenses of the Company where necessary.
For the year 2020, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or studying materials relevant to
director’s duties and responsibility. Their training records have been provided
to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yuen Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yuen"”) was appointed as company secretary of
the Company since May 2018 and Ms. Leung Lai Ming (“Ms. Leung”) was
appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company to act jointly to serve
as a joint company secretary of the Company with effect from 14 October
2020.
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Following the resignation of Ms. Yuen as a joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 2 March 2021, Ms. Leung remains in office and
continue to act as the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Leung is a
service provider and she fulfills the requirement under rule 5.14 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Mr. Chow Yik, the executive Director, is the primary contact
person who Ms. Leung contacts. In accordance with rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules, both Ms. Yuen and Ms. Leung have taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had adopted a
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry
of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the related party transactions, if
any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice of
annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer questions
on the business. Extensive information about the Group's activities is provided
in its annual report, interim report and quarterly reports which are sent to
shareholders and investors. The Company’s announcements, press releases
and publications are published and are also available on GEM website and on
the Company’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was not any change in
the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the
Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website
and GEM website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

28

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company (the "Extraordinary General
Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the secretary
for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary General Meeting to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by email
at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the Company's
Hong Kong head office at 21/F, Henan Building, 90 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquiries with the
Board directly at the general meetings.

Make proposals at general meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting

Pursuant to the Articles (as amended from time to time), the
shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an Extraordinary General Meeting according to the

procedures as set out above.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Yik (“Mr. Chow"), aged 39, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since April 2020 and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also the member of the nomination
committee and an authorised representative of the Company as required
under rule 5.24 of the GEM Listing Rules and an authorised representative of
the Company pursuant to Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. Chow is currently studying Master of Business Administration programme
("EMBA") at the School of Economic and Management of Tsinghua
University. He obtained the degree of Bachelor of Engineering, majoring
in Electronic and Communication Engineering from the City University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Chow is currently the chairman and executive director of CBK Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8428) and was the chairman and an executive director
of Kirin Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8109) from April 2015 to
September 2020, the shares of all these companies are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chong Cha Hwa (“Mr. Chong”), aged 54, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since October 2020. Mr. Chong is an
authorised representative of the Company as required under rule 5.24 of the
GEM Listing Rules and an authorised representative of the Company pursuant
to Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Mr. Chong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr.
Chong holds a bachelor degree of management with honours from the
University of Science, Malaysia. He has more than 20 years of experience
in the accounting and finance area servicing private and publicly listed
companies in Hong Kong and the Southern Asia region. He is currently
also an independent non-executive director of China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 340), the shares of which are listed on
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chong was an independent non-
executive director of China Mining Resources Group Limited (presently known
as Tongguan Gold Group Limited) from November 2011 to July 2017. He
was also an executive director of China Shanshui Cement Group Limited
(stock code: 691) from December 2015 to February 2016 and was then re-
designated as a non-executive director of that company from February 2016
to May 2017. The shares of the aforesaid companies are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Yao Tong (“Mr. Yao"), aged 32, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since December 2020. He is also the member of the
remuneration committee and compliance officer of the Company.

Mr. Yao holds a bachelor's degree in Franchise Management from Beihai
College of Beihang University in China. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yao
was the business manager of Shanghai DZH Limited (stock code 601519),
a company listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr.Yao is currently also
the general manager of Guang Zhou Yun Tian Investment and Consulting
Limited* (BMEXLEEHAARAF])and the deputy general manager of
Guang Dong Yun Tian Electronic Technology Limited* (B EXBFRIAE
nE).

Mr. Chung Man Lai (“Mr. Chung”), aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April 2020 and
has been re-designated as executive director with effect from September
2020.

Mr. Chung has over 20 years of experience in auditing and accounting. Prior
to joining the Board, he worked successively in a reputable international
accounting firm and served as the chief financial officer of CMIC Ocean En-
Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as TSC Group Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 206)) and IDT International Limited (stock code: 167) respectively,
the shares of both companies are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is currently a non-executive director of Greatwalle Inc, (stock
code: 8315), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
and an independent non-executive director of Century Group International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2113), the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange and Roma Group Limited (stock
code: 8072), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
respectively. He is also the chief financial officer, company secretary, member
of the risk management committee and authorised representative of D&G
Technology Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1301), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1998 and a master of Business Administration
degree with a major in international business from EU Business School in
2018. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

*  For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 33, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since February 2016.
He is also the Chairman of each of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Leung has been engaging in financial services sector for over 9 years,
along with ample experience in an international accounting firm and an
international bank. He currently serves as a corporate finance principal for a
professional firm. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Social Sciences from
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2009. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and joined the Council of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2018. Mr. Leung was
an independent non-executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8022) from March 2016 to January 2021, the shares of which
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria (“Ms. Lam"”), aged 51, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since September
2020. She is also member of each of the audit committee, remuneration

committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a master degree in Management from the Macquarie
University and a master degree in Applied Psychology from City University
of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. She is also an accredited mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited, a member and a qualified graphologist of
the British Institute of Graphologists.

Prior to joining the Board, Ms. Lam has worked with an international
accounting firm and other leading listed and private group of companies
and has extensive experience in company secretarial practice, assurance,
treasury and finance. She is currently providing management consultancy
and corporate secretarial services to listed issuers and private companies, and
graphology consultancy and training services.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 11. The principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on page 11 and disclosed in the section headed “Financial risk
management and fair values of financial instruments” in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial Summary
on page 168. The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources and energy saving. Green initiatives and measures have
been adopted in the Group's operation. A separate Environmental, Social
and Governance Report will be published no later than two months after the
publication of this annual report. For details, please refer to the Company's
website.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group recognises
that employees, customers and business partners are the keys to sustainable
development. The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring
relationship with our employees, providing quality services to our customers
and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing operations attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year under review is as follows:

TERRRMES
AMARERDEMBEE) RO TEER
RAHRER 2 BB E 2 S ERRBEN T
AT :

Percentage of the Group's total

HEEEBEEZTHS
Sales Purchases
tHE& KR8
The largest customer RAEE 9%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREE &S 31%
The largest supplier BRAMRER 61%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARBEEEG ST 88%

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the Company's
affairs for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 55 to 167.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company pursues a continuity-based dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
which aims to allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board should take into account, inter alias, the Company’s
operating results, actual and expected financial performance, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and members of the
Group, the Group’s debt to equity ratios, liquidity position, the Group
expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans, any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's
lender, general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business
and any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and relevant.
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The Board will review, modify and/or update the Dividend Policy at any time
as it deems fits and necessary.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$20,733,000 (2019:
HK$96,879,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are set out
in note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

£
RAMBREEREEARSBMZEFZEFHU
T

Resigned/
Appointed on Retired on
=1 BHERIE

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chow Yik Bkt 1/4/2020
Mr. Chung Man Lai [ € 1/4/2020

(re-designated as executive Director of the Company  (RZZ -

from the position of independent non-executive NE+HEBHBEBEIFERNTES

Director on 15/9/2020) FAERKRABHNITES)
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRESLE 14/10/2020
Mr. Yao Tong wkiB A 7/12/2020
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak wmKERE 28/4/2020 3/12/2020
Ms. Sin Pui Ying HmEZ 22/11/2019 15/9/2020
Mr. Ng Kin Man ARt 1/3/2019 11/5/2020
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung B 8 5 4 20/3/2017 1/4/2020
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. Zheng Yonggiang Bk aR AL 1/10/2018 1/1/2021
Independent non-executive Directors BIIERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun BB EE 23/2/2016
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria MEEL 15/9/2020
Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric EREkt: 2/3/2016 1/1/2021
Dr. Lee G. Lam MKREELT 1/1/2019 1/3/2021

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa and Mr. Yao Tong who were appointed as executive Directors on 14
October 2020 and 7 December 2020 respectively and Ms. Lam Yuen Man
Maria who was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
15 September 2020, will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Leung Man
Chun will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

RRELEERFBREEDIN -2 _FF+H
THOER-ETEF+ T A CHEZERNT
B MMEEZ TN S _SFHA+HhHE
LERBIUIFNTES  RERT ZMAIFE112
HRE REZERREERERRBFAGE
ARLE MREFTEERLBENRREFAE
LEEE S
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Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’' CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors, had, or was deemed to
have any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")
(Chapter 571 under the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2020, the interests
and short positions of the persons, other than Directors, in the shares or
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

%%%ﬁm%ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁz
EFERR

BEFRN R E-SET-A=+—8>
BEFHNZALRRORAMBHFES LA
AADRIEES RIS RO EIHART 2

Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: stz AR BENT ¢
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity shares shareholding
FERRER BB &% RICEE BAORERSDL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hizt1) (Hizt2)
Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung Beneficial owner 663,477,955 (L) 52.13%

TSR ST BmBEEA

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

2. The total number of 1,272,640,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 has been
used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had not
been notified of other interests or short positions of any other person (other
than the Directors, chief executives and the substantial shareholders of the
Company) in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognise and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of
10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option Scheme
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March 2013 and note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
"Eligible
“Invested

extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the Share
Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2016 and the
Company'’s circular dated 13 April 2016.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2018,
shareholders approved the refreshment of the maximum number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all share options under
the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of options available for granting by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme was 127,264,000, representing 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue on that date.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to date of this report, the
Company had not granted any options and no outstanding options under the
Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which the Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other that the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
requires the Company to enter into an agreement that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares, were entered into by the Group during the Year
or existed at the end of 2020.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Directors have
the following interests in the business apart from the Group's business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s

business:
Director Name of company
S Ak

Nature of business

E3 ]

hFEMBRE

AEERBERFZEXEREELRABRRES
RAFRE 1685 ©

BRIKETHEY
AEBZRBARABFBHNGEMBERRITE
23e

% R 175 5

BT AAT RSB RAEERN B
TEERER > SEERET I ETR T RTER
A ABRTRBWRTR B REREAT)
SUAAREEERTERARDETRAM
RSN

EENHBPEBPZELR

A CTE+ A=+ BREEFREH

HH EENEAERERERUBEERRIN
AT R £ GRAEEEKIN hiER

T?‘M&ﬁﬁ 5

Nature of interests

it e

Mr. Chung Man Lai *Greatewalle Inc. (“Greatewalle”) and its subsidiary

FERE ik *RPEERF (RAERE) REWEAFE

Mr. Leung Man Chun (Note 1) *Evershine Group Holdings Limited ("Evershine”)
and its subsidiary
RXBEE (1) KIBEEERBRA

8 (Fx1E) REKRBAF

Dr. Lee G. Lam (Note 2) "Hang Pin Living Technology Company Limited
("Hang Pin Living”) and its subsidiary

*ﬂuuixﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ RAT (MdmEiE))
KERER

MEEEL (fH5t2)

“Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (“Mei Ah")
and its associate

EDREENEIERAR (ED) REKE AT

* listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
A listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Mobile games business

FRIEBRES

Money lending business

Money lending business

BEEH

Mobile games applications

FHEER

Non-executive director of
Greatewalle

REEEZFFRTESR

Independent non-executive
director of Evershine

XEZBUFHTES

Independent non-executive
director of Hang Pin Living

MetEZBUFNTES

Independent non-executive
director of Mei Ah
EDZBUFNTES
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Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as independent non-executive director of Evershine
with effect from 12 January 2021.

2. Dr. Lee G. Lam resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1
March 2021.

As the Board is independent to the boards of the above mentioned
companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of,
and at arm’s length, from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the
Directors has an interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business in which the Group is engaged.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable any of the
Directors and chief executive, their respective spouses or children under
the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body

corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 12 to 28 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review, in draft form, the
Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit
committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control of the Group. As at
the date of this report, the audit committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr.
Leung Man Chun and Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria. Mr. Leung Man Chun is the
chairman of the audit committee.
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The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the internal controls
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2020 interim report
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

(1) Mr. Chow Yik resigned as the chairman, an executive director, an
authorised representative and an authorised representative pursuant to
Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “CR Authorised Representative”) and the compliance officer
of Kirin Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange) with effect from 1 October 2020.

Mr. Chow was appointed as the chairman and an executive director
of CBK Holdings Limited (“CBK") (a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange) with effect from 11 December 2020. He subsequently
appointed as the compliance officer, an authorised representative, the
CR Authorised Representative, the chairman of the legal compliance
committee and a member of each of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of CBK with effect from 18 December 2020.

Mr. Chow was appointed as the authorised representative and the CR
Authorised Representative of the Company with effect from 2 March
2021,

(2)  Ms Sin Pui Ying resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15
September 2020.

(3)  Mr. Tsui Wing Tak resigned as an authorised representative and the CR
Authorised Representative of the Company with effect from 14 October
2020.
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Mr. Tsui subsequently resigned as an executive Director, member of the
remuneration committee and compliance officer of the Company with
effect from 3 December 2020.

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 15 September 2020.

Ms. Lam subsequently appointed as member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee with
effect from 1 January 2021.

Mr. Chung Man Lai was re-designated as executive Director from the
position of independent non-executive Director with effect from 15
September 2020. His appointment has no fixed term of services and he
was entitled to an annual emolument of HK$240,000.

Mr. Chung was appointed as the chief financial officer, company secretary,
member of the risk management committee and authorised representative
of D&G Technology Holding Company Limited (a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange) with effect from 23 September 2020.

Mr. Chong Cha Hwa was appointed as an executive Director, authorised
representative and the CR Authorised Representative of the Company with
effect from 14 October 2020.

Mr. Yao Tong was appointed as executive Director and member of
remuneration committee and compliance officer with effect from 7
December 2020.

Mr. Zheng Yonggiang resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2021.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung Eric resigned as an independent non-executive Director,
member of each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee with effect from 1 January 2021.

Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as an independent non-executive
director, chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee of Evershine Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange) with
effect from 12 January 2021.

Dr. Lee G. Lam resigned as an independent non-executive Director and
member of audit committee with effect from 1 March 2021.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public float
requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of these
related party transactions constitutes connected transactions that need to be
disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, the Directors shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duty of their respective
offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors, the
company secretary of the Company and officers of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, 2019 and 2020 were audited by Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly

Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chow Yik
Executive Director

23 March 2021
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@ pakertilly
PN 5]

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 55 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020
and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS FTEEFFE
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were RIEH Mz ExH D TEBFETEAZSHAE
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements HGREMBRREAREEZEH - ZEEHE

E?ﬂzﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁLﬁé STZEBRIBERT
I WHRIESEER MEMLTMZEEE
BIREER-

of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBFE BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwiill

BEEZRENABRZ EEHE

Refer to Notes 2(e), 2(j)iii) and 12 of the consolidated financial statements
BRI G RN E2(e) 2012

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's carrying amount of  Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:
goodwill was allocated to two cash-generating units (“CGUs"), FFEILAEZEFE2FEE EHPEHE) !
namely, software platform and mobile games and applications

business of HK$20,236,000 and HK$Nil together with
accumulated impairment of HK$Nil and HK$89,433,000.

NZEZTE+ZA=+—H> E£EEEZREEERR
SHRESEEMEREEESN (TREELEN) BT
B R ik S R %75 > AR ME{E 420,236,000 T M EHE 7T
RETREA T B 7T 589,433,000 7T ©

The assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill which is
based on the future prospect and forecast performance of the
businesses.

BEZ RO ZRTEENZFET 2 RRA R KB
IF o

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

HENEREEBMERZBRR D EZGENE 15
PR EHERRRRIMAMBRAERZRRRTTE

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;

FEREFEREREL B R BIETE
BREBEGH 2 ERYE TRATERERARS
REE LR GHEERERNZES ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
EBHER

Bt HE (@)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

iz RENSEMZ T EE (@)

Refer to Notes 2(e), 2(j)iii) and 12 of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BB GBS ZE2(e) ~ 20)ii)F12 ()

Due to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and
discounting future cash flows, which are the basis of the
assessment of recoverability, this is one of the key judgemental
areas that our audit concentrated on. There is a risk that the key
assumptions, estimates and judgements on which the calculations
are based upon are inappropriate and that goodwill is overstated
as a result.

MR EEENRERARBSRES @S RAES FREY
(HA SRR > B %)  LARMBSFEEZ TS
B SEI > — o S TR B RS S EFR AR 2 E BB ~ 3 R AR
TEE AEEAEABEZAR.
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assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2021
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the goodwill; and

SHETRAERRECZREN  @EREATZZ
_—fﬁéﬁ’%i%\%Eﬁigé$&ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ’%$%ﬁﬁ
B LM EZREEREEE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the

recoverable amount of goodwill.

HERFRAENREREHRZRR BIZEHE
EBHEAUNOTRAARBRENEZRR) ARZRK
BREBRD
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FTEETEIE (B

The Key Audit Matter
FEEFE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets

RErEEZRENAAMZ EZHE

Refer to Notes 2(h), 2(j)(iii) and 11 of the consolidated financial statements
BRI SR FEIRA M EE2(h) ~ 20k 11

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has intangible assets with a  Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:
carrying amount of HK$2,760,000 (2019: HK$34,275,000) arising ~ FIELIL A EZ Bsti2FEE (HhaiE)

from First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries (together
"FS Group”), whose recoverability is dependent on the ability of
the businesses to which it relates to generate sufficient future
economic benefits. There is a risk that this will not be the case
which would result in an impairment being required.

RZEZZEF+ZA=+—H> &E&EBEBFirst Surplus
Investments Ltd. & EMBAE GRIBIFSER)) ELXREES
2,760,000787T (ZE—4 : 34,275,000 7T) WEFREE H
IR BRN EAEMEREE R E 2 R REE R A Z AT
AR EEENREEEREZ R ENRMAT REZE
P

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

MEREREEEMERZBRIAEZAEN &
PR BEHERERRNMAMBRERAZRRRTTE

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management's forecasting;

ERBEREEBMERNZIRERETER TG
EEEEEMFZERTE URBETERGREAZS
FREETLERUFHMEEEERAIZES ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
EBHER

Bt HE (@)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets (Continued)

BEmEEZ RENSERZ T ENE (8

Refer to Notes 2(h), 2(j)(iii) and 11 of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRERE R BB EZ2(h) ~ 20)(ii)%11 (&)

The carrying amounts of these intangible assets are dependent
on the business being able to generate revenue from the ultimate
users for the mobile games, mobile applications and website
developed by FS Group.

ZERTLEEZRBBEIRNZERES BFSERBEZ FIK
TR FREARBEZRERBREE R -

Impairment reviews are performed by the Group when there is an
indication that the carrying amount may not be supported. The
impairment reviews are based on discounted cash flow projections
reflecting a number of assumptions and estimates which require
significant judgement and are inherently uncertain.

EHRREBEREFZ2ER SEERETRESR M
BEERNDERMRRSAER ZRARMKSEFFHEKR
Hih 2 R AL FEER Z A HEEE -
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assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2021
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of these intangible assets; and

SHETRAERRECZREL ENEXTZ TS
T FRFEBACHELE R  RPAERKXKAIR
Z DM ZE RV EEZREEREEE ' &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of these intangible assets.

HERFRAENREREHRZRR BIZEHE
EZEFETVEENHRTCREERBEEXEZRR
BRIZBRBERSRD
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) EBtE1E (48)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBHER BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables

EWERKRHEZEEREE

Refer to Notes 2()(i), 2(m), 17 and 26(a) of the consolidated financial statements
sE BRI S RIFE IR AN 2()() ~ 2(m) ~ 17/26(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest receivables recorded  Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:
initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost in the FFIFEL A EZ B IZFEE EPEIE)

consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of the loans receivable and interest
receivables were HK$76,610,000 (2019: HK$106,045,000) and
HK$6,156,000 (2019: HK$6,058,000) respectively.

SEERGEMBERRERPRINS UL TFEARZERER
EAME  THBZREHAARIE - R _E-SFE+"/F=+—
B> ﬁu EXAERF B ZREEDFIA76,610,0008 7T (Z

T — 14 : 106,045,000 75) K6,156,0008 7T (ZT—HE !
6,058,000 7T,) ©

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL") requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL model such as the
probabilities of default, loss given default, expected future cash
flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

FEREERE ((BHEEFE) 2t 2B REREALIE  E
BE#REEEEFEERLLZAR  UREHEEGEER S
BRZEBR AIMNELNT N  BYEA FBHRAKREHER
BIEM 2 REKHEA R

obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group's accounting records;

ERRBEENHEES (MR HERIEHER
Wk (0A)) WHER SEEgstHPzrT 7
K EHAREMER ;

testing of controls designed and applied in the process
of approving and granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan extensions;

Bt ERBEERZBEDARE RERZERE
TR EREREBEFKREREMERER ;

assessing the effectiveness of key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, the
governance for the ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

ST EEGIETRSR A RES S TR EEEER
XzER BEEEEAERREEEERERZH
ABEBRBRZANILE ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FEEFFE @
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
TEBEHEE BONBHAPEEZEEZHE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

BWERKRFEZEERET (@

Refer to Notes 2()(i), 2(m), 17 and 26(a) of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRI SR BERZMEE20)1)~ 2(m)~ 17/26(a) (48)

Due to the significance of loans and interest receivables e assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models
(representing 52 % of total assets) and inherent uncertainty in such and the Group's criteria for assessing if there has been
estimates, we considered this as a key audit matter. a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for

financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL

HREWERRAE#MEBEEA HEEES2%) RMEstZEER basis and the qualitative assessment;
FEMN  HfRAL—BET BBt EE.

o  iHMh EEEBRHEEHREENKR SEEFEREE
RRRtEBERI REEREEZBFEESRER
KATEMEEGRREESFEZ R RELTEZE

B

o recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a

sample basis;

o  HMEEWSHEMIBZERFEWA ;

o obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the

borrowers on a sample basis; and

s  HMBEBENERAZEREXRERE K

o reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any

unsettled past-due balances.

s BEHBRIZEFZH WMEEEABEDRTLER
i

REEBHGRERE B RERZREA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ EM RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Ht&ER
EEEEHMEH BN OEFRNZFAE
HE BFBEEAYEBREAMAZERE
PRt 2 AR 25 o

BPIEREMBRRZERTBEAEMER T
RN TR E RERTE R ZRBAER ©

BRRMBREVHBREZET RMAZ2EEE
RIEE L PR R 2 HME R T IL@REFE &
HinENEEHGES M BRRAAXMESST
FREZZIERNAERERT—RZIBER SR EEU
HAh 75 TR E A EER R -

HRBRAMET 2 IIF AR ALFEME
HEAERBRERL AHMARREZEFE R
IRz EEFATREZER-

EERAEBEMGRESMBRREA
REZEE

EFREEREEEEMAGREMBZEEBY
BREEREBRAKIZKERERNE
BMATRMZGEEMBRT EBHRIRR
IR EMBRRFAVEZ NERETE » LUEHREH]
BREATFEARIGFRERMERZERHE
SRR

HRVGEVBRERR E5F5EME 85
BREECERED VKE WWER) AFKEKEER
Bz EFERERFEEEREFER RIFES
B EEEBRIUKIEEERET HA®REE
TABIRIEEEEZMIEERR BN %

ZEREEREER SEECHMBREBERE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ EM RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ EM RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

REIMHESHREMBRERZE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ EM RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Choi Kwong Yu.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2021

Choi Kwong Yu

Practising certificate number PO5071
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE—_ZE " ZF+_H=+—HIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 755R)

2020 2019
—E_EHF —Z—NF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
JioE=3 FET BT
Revenue & 3
— Provision of software platform services —RMHEGF 5 RS 20,403 20,107
— Interest income from money lending — AR B WA 10,690 17,040
— Mobile games and applications — R IR 327 2,926
31,420 40,073
Cost of sales THEMA (11,699) (4,598)
Gross profit EF 19,721 35,475
Other income, net HW A F 58 4 2,989 501
Administrative expenses THREX (68,415) (49,618)
Research and development expenses R (4,803) (6,483)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAS (2,193) (2,174)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEERBERSE 11 (19,003) =
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE 12 (19,555) (44,975)
Loss from operations KEEE (91,259) (67,274)
Finance costs BN 5(a) (1,896) (2,327)
Loss before taxation PR A58 5 (93,155) (69,601)
Income tax credit FTigiRigs 6 5,158 2,118
Loss for the year FEIE (87,997) (67,483)
Attributable to: LUFALRE :
— owners of the Company . UN=IEZ 2 =N (71,611) (61,470)
— non-controlling interests —JRIERG TR (16,386) (6,013)
(87,997) (67,483)
HK cents HK cents
Al B
Loss per share SREE
Basic and diluted EHA R 4858 9 (5.63) (4.83)

FE63BE167EZ ARG EM B RR ZHN
statements. ik

The notes on pages 63 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mraEnRkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 7T5)R

ToTEt A+ HIEEE
)

2020 2019
—ECZF —hE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FHET
Loss for the year FERE (87,997) (67,483)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHME2EKE (%) »
for the year, net of nil tax KINRZRIA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently ~ H&TIfE N EEBR 2 IEH !
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation — MBI RIS FEIRR 2
of financial statements of foreign PEREXE
operations 94 (26)
— Cumulative exchange loss reclassified —BUHE—RERE AR %
from equity to profit or loss upon HEmEMDEEER 2
deregistration of a subsidiary REtEREIE 5(c) 169 -
— Cumulative exchange gain reclassified from —HEMBA BB MR
equity to profit or loss upon disposal of %%ﬁ TEEEEmZ RET
subsidiaries Ui 29(b) () =
ltems that will not be reclassified to E?ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁ@%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@é%z
profit or loss: BH :
— Equity investments at fair value through —BAFESAHMER
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") W= (TFVOCH)) 5182
— net movement in fair value reserve AR E AT EHEE
(non-recycling) ZEH)FEE (f ] EE) - (348)
— Loss on disposal of equity investments —HEEFVOCIEtEZ
measured at FVOC| AL E B8 (152) -
109 (374)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FE 2 HE X488 (87,888) (67,857)
Attributable to: WUTFALTRE:
— owners of the Company . VYNCIEZZ= DN (71,538) (61,839)
— non-controlling interests — IR S (16,350) (6,018)
(87,888) (67,857)
The notes on pages 63 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial F63EE167E 2 W ARGEMFIRR 2 4K
statements. LS o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 755R)

2020 2019
—ECZF —Z2—hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Viok=3 FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE

Property, plant and equipment M BB R 10 34,796 41,363
Intangible assets BLEE 11 2,760 34,275
Goodwill e 12 20,236 39,791
Investment in equity securities BARFESZEE 13 - 152
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 528 4,103
Deferred tax assets FIERRIEE & 22(b) 1,248 1,248
59,568 120,932

Current assets RHAEE
Contract assets HBHEE 15(a) - 3,865
Trade and other receivables JFE LAt AR R R L FE WL =R 16 13,770 14,188
Loans receivable EWER 17 76,610 106,045
Interest receivables A GIS) 17 6,156 6,058
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIESEEY 3,415 9,610
99,951 139,766

Current liabilities BiEp=RE
Trade and other payables P BR AU B EL A FE (T =R 19 3,202 2,651
Contract liabilities BHBaE 15(b) 3,830 5,196
Interest-bearing borrowings {RRSSEEN 20 37,060 40,266
Lease liabilities HESE 21 543 2,724
Current tax payable [E{TBNERFR 1B 22(a) 53 715
44,688 51,552
Net current assets REBEERE 55,263 88,214
Total assets less current liabilities BEBEERTHER 114,831 209,146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ke MBI R

As at 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 755R)

2020 2019
—ECZF —ZE—hF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Viok:3 FHET TET
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 21 = 1,267
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEaE 22(b) - 5,160
- 6,427
NET ASSETS BEFE 114,831 202,719
Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital [ 25(a) 50,906 50,906
Reserves E4i] 63,784 135,638
Total equity attributable to BRAFEE AL EDLAEE
owners of the Company 114,690 186,544
Non-controlling interests JEPER 141 16,175
TOTAL EQUITY TR AREE 114,831 202,719

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March EEGN T F-A"F+=BiLERRE

2021. Flgge
Chow Yik Chung Man Lai
AR &
Director Director
= =

The notes on pages 63 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial H63EE167B Z et R AL E M B IRR 2 4K

statements. =ik
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREDEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B3> )

—EE+CAS+—BLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARERAER
Fair value
reserve Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange (non- Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus feserve \rec%cl%l?ﬁ reserve losses Total interests Total
T
BE  REE B4R EABE  ERRGE (RUE®)  HtEE  RaBE an FEREG a3t
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$f000 HK$fOOO HK$"000 HK$'00_0
TR TR TR TR T T FEx T T TERT TR
(note (note (note (note (note (note
(b)() B 50 250 )) 25(b)l )) 25(b)vi)
(st (i3 Iz Uik (i3t (3t
50))  250)i) 250 250 )) 5000 250)wi)
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-AE-F-H
2 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 (270) - (99) (202,770) 248,383 22,193 270,576
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NEZEGEEE:
Loss for the year EEHE - - - - - - - (61.470)  (61,470) (6013)  (67.483)
Other comprehensive expense for FEEMI RS
the year, net of il tax ANRSHIE
- Exchange differences on translation  — 4B EEBEBR
of financial statements of foreign RLERER
operations - - - - (21) - - - (21) (5) (26)
- Equity investments at FVOCI: —fFVOC\ufEZ RAK
net movement in fair value TEEEZ
reserve (non-recycling) *Ef]@éﬁ (FI@
&) - - - - - (348) - - (348) - (348)
Total comprehensive expense EERERTAE
for the year - - - - (21) (348) - (61,470) (61,839) (6,018) (67,857)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-hE
1 January 2020 +ZB=t-Bk
ZZ-Z%-B-H 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 (291) (348) (99) (264,240) 186,544 16,175 202,719
Changes in equity for 2020: ZECRERGES.
Loss for the year FEBR = = = = o = = (1611 (1611) (16386  (87.997)
Other comprehensive income/ EERMRENE/
(expense) for the year, netof il tax (8%) » TBERE
- Exchange differences on translation  — BN EIEBEHR
of financial statements of foreign ~~ XZEREE
operations - - - - 58 = = = 58 36 94
- Cumulative exchange loss ~EEER-ENEA
reclassified to profit or loss upon ARENIEER
deregistration of a subsidiary e RHEREE = = = = 169 = = = 169 - 169
- Cumulative exchange gain reclassified  —HERBAREEH
to profit or loss upon disposal of NEEBEZ B3
subsidiaries ER b - - - - 2 = = = 2 = @
~ Loss on disposal of equity ~HERNOCEEZ
investments measured a3
atfvodi - - - - = = = (152) (152) = (152)
Total comprehensive income/ EERENE/ (R
(expense) for the year ek - = = = 25 = - (71,763) (71,538) (16,350) (87,888)
Transfer of fair value reserve (non- REERVOCEEZ
recycling) upon the disposal of equity ~ RAREHER
investments measured at FVOC| ATEGRE (Ro2#) - - - - - 348 - (348) = = -
Acquisition of a non- B ER
controlling interest - - - = = = (316) = (316) 316 =
At 31 December 2020 R-E_EE
+-A=+-H 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 (66) - (415) (336,351) 114,690 14 114,831
The notes on pages 63 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial %63,5 167E 2 W A AR E TR R 2 AR
statements. =i
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE—_ZE " ZF+_H=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B3> )

2020 2019
ZEIEHF Z—NEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FAET FHET
Operating activities REEE)
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 (93,155) (69,601)
Adjustments for: HEEE
- Bank interest income —iRITH BULA 4 3) 3)
— Gain on early termination of leases — BRI EZ WE 4 (16) (20)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net —HERB AR Z W E FEE 4 (185) -
— Finance costs — B A 5(a) 1,896 2,327
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EEEH 5() 12,272 12,836
— Cumulative exchange loss reclassified from  —BUHEM—REIM B AR %
equity to profit or loss upon HEREMOBEERG Y
deregistration of a subsidiary HEtEREIE 5() 169 =
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME - -BERKLEITE
equipment 5(c) 6,016 6,476
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEERE 5(0) 1,984 4,145
— Impairment loss on contract assets —BHNEEREERE 5() — 7
— Impairment loss on deposits —RERERE 5(c) 5,000 =
— Impairment loss on loans and interest —EWRER AN ERERE
receivables 5(c) 17,159 4,850
— Impairment loss on trade receivables —EWARFUR B R IE 5(c) 5,457 113
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEME -BEX
equipment, net REEIE SRR 5() 1,267 34
— Write-down of inventories —REFE 5(c) - 44
— Write-off of intangible assets — S T B 5() 3,000 =
— Write-off of loans and interest receivables — —ifit4fEIN S & T2 5() 96 27
— Write-off of trade receivables — it £ P U AR AR 5(c) 1,469 =
— Impairment loss on intangible assets —EmEEENERE 11 19,003 =
— Impairment loss on goodwill —EERERE 12 19,555 44,975
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net —FEZ & B2 2558 41 26
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BRERER

II‘I-F

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B3>

—EE+CAS+—BLEE

)

2020 2019
ZEIEHF —h&E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FAET FHET
Operating profit before working EEEHA 2 REEN
capital changes 1,025 6,236
Decrease in contract assets BHNEERLD 3,865 -
Increase in trade and other receivables 7R ST AR 0 e L th FEE KRR 3 1T (13,019) (456)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and interest FEWRE R R F SR, (1)
receivables 10,552 (6,264)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FE AT AR TR LA FE (T 3R
other payables i, GRlsb) 609 (733)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaER D (1,366) (1,539)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEMR (FrA) e 9%
operations 1,666 (2,756)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (B REIEBANER (664) 92
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBFRT (A REFHE
operating activities 1,002 (2,664)
Investing activities KREEE
Expenditure on projects development IERRETH (2,760) (3,000)
Interest received BUWHE 3 3
Net cash inflow from disposal of investment — H&3ZFVOCIFTt 22 IRAE S
in equity securities measured at FVOCI KREZIRERAZEE = =
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT 2
WEMAFE 29(b) 1,487 -
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE  BERREBENTR
plant and equipment (325) (533)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE -BERRBFISNIE
plant and equipment 1,140 -
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEFTAIRE S5 (455) (3,530)
HRFREEBRAR 61
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B3>

—EE+CAS—BLEE
=

2020 2019
—_ v —= E = _j-LEE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FAET FHET
Financing activities AEEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid BNHEEREEERI D (1.687) (4,031)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEERSNEZD (143) (299)
Other interest paid HMBEMAHE (1,753) (2,028)
Proceeds from new bank loans ERTT BTSRRI - 43,200
New loans from third parties REBE=FZHEMR 1,900 10,000
Repayment of bank loans BIRIRITEM (4,106) (2,934)
Loans repayment to third parties ME=FEEEN (1,000) (43,000)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES (FrA) FriSR& 3
financing activities (6,789) 908
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR&RIRE S EYRE L FEE (6,242) (5,286)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZHRERFESEEY 9,610 14,948
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXREFHFE 47 (52)
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HZREK
at 31 December HEZEEY 3,415 9,610
& The cash consideration is US$1. o B A EAIET.
The notes on pages 63 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial F63EE167B 2 ARG E M FEIRER 2 4K

statements.

B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has its registered office and
principal place of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and 21st Floor,
Henan Building, 90 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 29(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated. Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group's presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

(b)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting period reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that investment in equity securities is stated at fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(f).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs

that have significant effect on the consolidated financial

statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are

discussed in note 31.

(c) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the

Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

"“Definition of Material”

"Definition of a Business”

“Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform”

None of these developments has had a material effect on how

the Group's results and financial position for the current or prior

periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not

applied any new or revised HKFRS that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period (see note 32).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

66

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to equity owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2())(iii)).
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68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(j)iii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(7

Investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities and
other than investments in subsidiaries are set out below.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 26(f). These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated losses. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL
or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(g) Property, plant and equipment

70

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)

(iii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Land and buildings 12 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the
remaining terms of leases

(whichever is shorter)

Furniture and fixtures 4 to 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 4 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,

if any, are reviewed annually.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

2

FEGFEE (B)

(9)

HE BERRE

W BB R R 2 AR R AR
K37 B R EASIE SRR (RIEE2()
(i) °

HRENLEYE BEARBEREER
PRELZ WS EER L EMSE

THFEBEIREEZ ZE > W HRE
S E HHATERE AR

ME-MERRBEE ZITERN
KRR RE WA UEREEH
TEst A R HAMEE E R

T REF +%F
HEYEEE =ERF

S RER MEEH

UBREERE)
FRiREE WERSF
Bl HARE ZEMF
Pl i

WYE- -BERRFEEEZEHD
BEATRAEBFEHE  AZERR
ZHARZEGEEEETRE D Z
Bk BEEBORIFEBITE-&
EZREREHARERE WA) B
REEETRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 g |

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)
(iii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(j)iii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date when they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:
Development costs 3 years

Mobile games 2 to 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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AT ER R I 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both
the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract as a lessee contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (”lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the
Group will take advantage of the practical expedient set out
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognise the change in
consideration as if it is not a lease modification.
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AT ER R I 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)

a0

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(j)(iii)). Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
right-of-use assets using the straight-line method over the lease
term or where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership of
the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in note 2(g).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

() Credit losses from financial assets and contract
assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents, loans and
interest receivables and trade and other receivables) and
contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” (see 2(1)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are
not subject to the ECL assessment.
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(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(1) Credit losses from financial assets and contract

assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive), discounted at original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(1) Credit losses from financial assets and contract

assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial assets since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
asset assessed at the end of the reporting period with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held).
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(1) Credit losses from financial assets and contract

assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(1) Credit losses from financial assets and contract

assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(u)
(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(1) Credit losses from financial assets and contract

assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract
asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the

recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)~ Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

(Continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to
be higher than the amount carried in “trade and other
payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default on the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the
risk that the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued, in which case a
lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of default
and the same assessment of significant increase in credit
risk as described in note 2(j)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amount that the Group expects to receive from the holder
of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e M HRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii7) - Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

2

EEFSECE (8)
() EEEHAREERE ()
(i) B FERBEEE ()

WEEAZERRFE BE
2P RO R W AT (h e Ut
S s E R AR HERZ
BPEEMS  Twen BT
FRETREE TR E
STE AU [EI R R -

—  FtEREEEE
BEFAKRLEESAT
B SR A BB
EmERZB®SE T
MEEREER S &R
B & B T 15 Y B WS B
BEKREEFERERT
HZIRAT R IR = > I’ (h
StARRIREREMIRE
HRE - WMEELEE
EEAEBINEME
EZHERA BB
BYEEREMAZER
NEEMLR BMREE
EEA) EEA WD E
o

B EERERAR 83
FE252020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
7177 g |

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

2

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Inventories
Inventories, which represent merchandises for resale, are carried

at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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AT ER R I 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 2(u)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(j)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(u)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(m) Loans and interest receivables

(n)

(o)

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of loans receivable is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they

are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted to
customers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit loss (see note 2(j)(i)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (see note 2(1)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2())(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(j)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(j)(ii), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2(w)).

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(7

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of software platform services,
interest income from money lending and revenue from mobile
games and applications in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Provision of software platform includes:

Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
when the goods are delivered to customers and
titles has been passed which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods;

Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the maintenance service contract;

Software rental and subscription income from
software application and website development,
which are recognised at point in time when the

relevant services are rendered; and

Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development deriving
from providing software application and electronic
learning platform to customers, which is recognised
over time when services are rendered. Revenue
is also recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the contract liabilities over the term of the service
contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
note 2(j)(i)).

(i) Revenue from mobile games and applications
includes:

- Publishing income from online game platform
owners, which is recognised at point in time on net
basis from platform owners when the paying players
purchase the game credits for the mobile games
after deducting pre-determined commissions; and

- Service income from the provision of mobile games
and applications development and related services,
which are recognised over time when the services
are rendered in accordance with the contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

)

(iv)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets and liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill arising on the
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

(w) Borrowing costs

96

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(x) Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

M

)

(€)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

©)

@)

(©)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(x) Related parties (Continued)

)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UAETTIIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WmKkaMBHRS
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services W 15 B B IR HE G T e IRFS m i
supplied to customers from the provision of software platform EFERZz2ERMMRBEZHEE
services, interest income from the money lending business B~ IEEFEFTEE 2 2 WAL
and revenue generated from mobile games and applications KR FWBEERERFTES I
development, as follows: milr
2020 2019
—B_F “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Revenue within the scope of EAMBREENEISREERR
HKFRS 15: Bk
Disaggregated by major products or RIBERIRBER D
service lines:
Provision of software platform services RERGFEARE 20,403 20,107
Mobile games and applications T 1% 50 154 e B B 327 2,926
20,730 23,033
Revenue from other sources HisREE 2 &
Interest income from money lending REFTEREWA 10,690 17,040
31,420 40,073
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BWaERRE R ETIZE D2
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is B R G B B HIEE3(0)))
disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii) respectively. K23(b)iii) o
HRFREEBRAR 99
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group determines its operating segments based on the

reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, which

are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments are

managed separately as each business offers different products

and services and requires different business strategies. No

operating segments identified by the chief operating decision-

maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable

segments of the Group. The following summary describes the

operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

— Software platform

— Money lending

— Mobile games and

applications

Developing and marketing of
patented server based technology
and the provision of communications
software platform and software
related services.

Provision of money lending business
through a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company which is a money
lender licensed in Hong Kong under
the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Game publishing, development of
mobile games and related intellectual
property and platform, mobile
applications and data solutions and
provision of IT related solutions.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B IR IR 5E

4= A
R 3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(i)

3 WmkoEEs (@

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) FEHE (B
Business segment () EFEDE
2020
k-Gt 3
Mobile
Software Money games and
platform lending  applications Total
Figasy
BHEFEE MiE K FER fEzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTHET FHET FTHET
Disaggregated by timing of revenue XU FEERFERIEI S
recognition
Point in time RE—B R 12,934 - 327 13,261
Qver time FEE R 7,469 10,690 - 18,159
Revenue from external customers REIREFZ WiE 20,403 10,690 327 31,420
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AREDIEF, (B8
("adjusted EBITDA") (M4 ZB%EEBITDA |) 2,893 (8,788) (12,532) (18,427)
Depreciation and amortisation e Koy 972 377 12,310 13,659
Impairment losses on: TIEE 2R ERE
— loans and interest receivables —ERERKFE - 17,159 - 17,159
~ trade receivables —EWERRR 57 - 5,400 5,457
— intangible assets —-mEE - - 19,003 19,003
— goodwill —-BE - - 19,555 19,555
Write-off of intangible assets WHELEE - - 3,000 3,000
Write-off of loans and interest receivables #fi$5FEUEFLF] 2 - 96 - 96
Write-off of trade receivables S FE UL R R - - 1,469 1,469
Income tax credit FTiSiRiE e - - (5,158) (5,158)
Reportable segment assets PRGN MEE 7,717 84,322 13,937 105,976
Additions to non-current assets JETRBNE AN 325 1,530 2,760 4,615
Reportable segment liabilities AERESEEE (4,468) (1,456) (15,917) (21,841)
HigFREERARAE 101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

3

102

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Business segment (Continued)

3 WmKkaEmks (&)
(b) HEFHE (4)

() FEBDE &

2019
“T-NE
Mobile
Software Money games and
platform lending applications Total
FHsEE
BHTE & K& 48t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAT FAET
Disaggregated by timing of revenue Uk LRGBS
recognition
Point in time RE—BEE 13,118 - 710 13,828
Over time EERE 6,989 17,040 2,216 26,245
Revenue from external customers RENAER 2R E 20,107 17,040 2,926 40,073
Reportable segment profit AEREDEEF
("adjusted EBITDA") (48 5E%EEBITDA ) 4,152 8,692 20 12,864
Depreciation and amortisation e R i 858 1,565 12,870 15,293
Impairment losses on: THIEE 2R ERIE
— contract assets —BHEBEE - - 7 7
— trade receivables —FEURERR 18 - 95 113
— loans and interest receivables —RBRERKFE = 4,850 = 4,850
- goodwill Gk - - 44,975 44,975
Write-off of loans and interest receivables H#fi#5FEU S FRF] & - 27 - 27
Income tax credit FriSitike - - (2,118) (2,118)
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 7,865 116,854 47,446 172,165
Additions to non-current assets JETRBNE AN 2,214 1,461 3,110 6,785
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHEE (6.653) (50) (25,770) (32,473)

The measure used for reporting segment result is
"adjusted EBITDA", i.e, "adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

ERDEEEMIAZTES
M AFLEBITDA | > BN MR FA 2
BRA)ETRIE T EE R B Al
a0 T EE R S AR E
BIEERBEEZ HERSIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A =
e MR ERRMIEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UAETTIIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WERk7DEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) FEHE (5B)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) AI#E DB am ~ R
profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEREEZHIR
2020 2019
—EEH —Z2—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue &
Reportable segment revenue AR b UL 31,420 40,073
Loss for the year FERE
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AR E D (B518) HF) (18,427) 12,864
Unallocated corporate income and KoV A KM
expenses (69,570) (80,347)
(87,997) (67,483)
Total assets BEMRE
Reportable segment assets AHREDIEE 105,976 172,165
Unallocated corporate assets ROBELEEEE 53,543 88,533
159,519 260,698
Total liabilities BfR4E%E
Reportable segment liabilities aREDE AR 21,841 32,473
Unallocated corporate liabilities N = =N 22,847 25,506
44,688 57,979
HRFREEBRAR 103
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
7177 g |

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

3

104

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

(iir)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include depreciation and amortisation, finance costs,
impairment loss on goodwill, staff costs and legal and
professional fees of head office. The unallocated corporate
assets and liabilities mainly include goodwill, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, prepayments,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision-maker
for the purposes of performance assessment and resource
allocation.

Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group's property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the assets, in case of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in
case of intangible assets and goodwill.

3 WmkoEEs (@

(b)
(i)

(iii)

ZEFERE ()

AR & 77 B ~ PE 7
BERERZHR (B
ROMEEBARFZTIED
BITER#E MEME B
ERERBEBIRSEES TR
AURERREEER KD
EtxEERBRIEEZERE
B E NG A=A EdE
REE -RUYRBE-HEARE
Mg BAETR - LTy pL R IR FT Al
KRERDEAIBEERRE
ZEHRFN

MEENREEES

NREFIBRGAEERESN
RERPZEZKRINVEFERZ
W -BERRE EREE
E-BREENKRBE (5
EEMBEE)) FIEMEZ
Bl iEIFRENE EPTTEMH
EREEBREME G
E BEARBUREHAEE
EMES) REEPREME GLE
WEEKBEMS) 85

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIMAERZ K EEERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZTZZEFE “Z-AF ZIZITIEFE ITAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR FTET TR
Hong Kong = 31,082 38,695 58,282 119,435
Mainland China FRE A - 827 38 97
Others B 338 551 = =
31,420 40,073 58,320 119,532

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M ERRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEKkDEHERS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEEKE (4B)
(i)  Geographical information and major customers (i) MEEHRFEEF (&
(Continued)
Others mainly cover Australia, Europe, Taiwan and HMFERZBEMN BN &
Thailand. 8 R Zx [ o
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no (2019: Nil) REBEE_Z_ZFE+_A
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the =t+t—HEFE & (CZ
Group's revenue. —NEFE &\ REBEATRZ
Q%H&ﬁﬁ HBiEAEERE
10% e
4 OTHER INCOME, NET 4 HthAFEE
2020 2019
—BEH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Bank interest income IRITFI S WA g 3
Foreign exchange gain, net P& So iR 7y & 10 =
Gain on early termination of leases IRAIRIERE 2 W 16 20
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMWB ARz W F 5 185 =
Government grants (Note) BT Bh (FEE) 2,755 =
Sundry income FEIFURA 20 478
2,989 501

Note: In 2020, the Group successfully applied for funding support from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Government from Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The purpose
of the funding is to provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy
period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the approved list of
the employees.

MysE

R_F_RF AEBMYRFEE B
THEEAFRIEEEE T MR
FEITEEY - TR ZIAMMER T A
EERHMEE  REDETRERD
EE - RIFMHMIIER AEBNIZZEM
BT EHEY B ABHEE2EAN XY
it ERE FNESTE

B EERERAR 105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UAETTIIR)
5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRMAIEHE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRI AIEIBEINRTIISIE .
2020 2019
—E-TH —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
(a) Finance costs: (a) FREERE :
Interest in lease liabilities HEaGNE 143 299
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAE 1,685 1,443
Interest on other borrowings HhfEmA 2 68 585
1,896 2,327
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIMZT (BIFEZiME
remuneration (note 7)): (FF5E7)) -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 14,202 17,842
Contributions to defined contribution [EE AR AR TR
retirement plan 522 728
14,724 18,570
() Other items: (0 EIEH:
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN & 888 868
Amortisation of intangible assets B BERE 12,272 12,836
Cumulative exchange loss reclassified ECH—RERE AR %
from equity to profit or loss upon HEREMOBERTD Y
deregistration of a subsidiary RETEREE 169 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERREITE
equipment 6,016 6,476
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,984 4,145
Expense relating to short-term leases AR E 2 BRI 934 752
Impairment losses on: THIEEZ RERSS !
— contract assets —BHNEE - 7
— deposits —¥&& 5,000 =
— loans and interest receivables —EWREREFE 17,159 4,850
— trade receivables —FEURBRFR 5,457 113
Loss of disposal of property, plant and HEYE -BREMKEZ
equipment, net B8 348 1,267 34
Write-down of inventories WREFES — 44
Write-off of intangible assets WHEEEE 3,000 =
Write-off of loans and interest EE FE U B =R B ) B
receivables 96 27
Write-off of trade receivables 88 FE U BR R 1,469 =
106 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o AL —
e MR ERRMIEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LUEEFIT)
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 MmEETmRZFEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) #FEEmEZHES:
or loss represents:
2020 2019
—ECEH —Z2—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BNEAMRIB—EFEFER
Under-provision in respect of prior years Wi FEEEETE 2 -
Deferred tax credit (note 22(b)) EERIEIR S (MiEE22(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary EH TR ELR
differences (5,160) (2,118)
Actual tax credit FRRIBIKS (5,158) (2,118)
() Hong Kong Profits Tax ) BEFEFR
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for HRESATMRZZNER
2020 (2019: HK$Nil) as the subsidiaries incorporated in (1)t = 2 SR 1S
Hong Kong have no assessable profits for the year. Miah] WA FETREHS
BHEREE CE2—NF:
TR ©
(i) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (i)  PEIEEAFR
The subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic REA> RAPEAREMN
of China (the “PRC") are subject to the PRC Enterprise (TehEy) sSEMA I Z B A
Income Tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) for the year. BIERIRE25 % MM E %
FIiSIR (T2 —F 1 25%) ©
No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been BERERBEMmAILZ MEA
made for 2020 as the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC BN A FE G RIS IER
have estimated tax losses for the year (2019: HK$Nil). B WEN 2 S EMAP
Bl ZEFRERELEE C=
—NE BT °
(iij)  Income tax from other tax jurisdictions (i) BB EEEREE AR
%
Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the RIRFT SRR R ARG » A&
Group is not subject to income tax in the Cayman Islands BB EHNHSHE REBRE
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). zEE (EBERZEE)) I8
mo
HRFREEBRAR 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LLABTTHIR)
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 ZEEIARZAER (@)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (b)) EHEFAREAEZHREMRE
loss at applicable tax rates: EEEEZHAR
2020 2019
—ECE “E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before taxation PRI BIESIE (93,155) (69,601)
Notional tax credit on loss before taxation 2&EEEATEREAE Z BRI A
at Hong Kong statutory tax rate B AERERS (15,370) (11,484)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Aol 2 RBEEE 7,111 14,580
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERRWA ZREE (651) (6,051)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not i R R A ARIEEIE Y
recognised mETE 3,851 964
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not  E B RFEIRIEEIE
recognised previously MEE (1,050) (1,611)
Tax effect of temporary differences not B REBERRFEE RBFE
recognised 649 1,396
Effect of difference tax rates of subsidiaries Fif B /AT FERK 2~ g £ 300 83
Under-provision in respect of prior years — MU{EEEEETE 2 -
Actual tax credit BERMRIEER (5,158) (2,118)
108 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M ERRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure

7 EEM=E
REEBABEAIBELE A (HE
EERIEEH) 3951 H280 RGEM L 4RA)

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the GEM FrigE 2 EEMENT -
Listing Rules are as follows:
Salaries, allowance and Discretionary Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total
BENg g RMRENNG RfETEAL BRGNS gt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZZI%E “Z-AF ZBITE “Z-NF ZEIEE “ZNEF ZEITE “I-NF ZZIBE “Z-Af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thw TERT Thw TET THET TER TFHET T TF#ET TER
Present directors REES
Executive directors RiTES
Chong Cha Hwa (note 1) RRE (1) - - 103 - - - - - 103 -
Chow Yik (note 2) B3 (£2) - - 450 - - - 14 - 464 -
Chung Man Lai (note 3) FE (f3E3) - - il - - - - - 1Al -
Yao Tong (note 4) ki (rEka) - - 2 - - - - - 32 -
Independent non-executive directors  BIFEHTES
Lam Yuen Man Maria (note 5) MEE (f1zE5) 35 - - - - - - = 35 =
Leung Man Chun Rtk 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Former directors AIftESE
Executive directors RITES
Chan Kiwun Chung (note 6) BEE (6) S - 33 1,107 100 63 5 18 438 1,188
Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (note 7) ZHR (H5E7) - = - 188 - = - 5 = 193
Ng Kin Man (note 8) ﬁﬁé}? (Kf3x8) - - M7 935 95 - 8 15 520 950
Sin Pui Ying (note 9) HRE (f9) - - 169 2% - - - - 169 2%
Tsui Wing Tak (note 10) #m (R310) - - 369 - - - 1 = 380 =
Non-executive director FaiTES
Zheng Yonggjiang (note 11) EPEAGE) - - 25 295 - - - - 225 295
Independent non-executive directors B EHTES
Chung Man Lai (note 3) FXE (f113) 55 - - - - - - - 55 -
Fok Kin Fung Eric (note 12) SR (H512) 120 120 = - = - = - 120 120
Lee G. Lam (note 13) MK (fi513) 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Pang Siu Yin (note 14) KB (f14) - 66 - = - = - = = 66
450 426 2,169 2,551 195 63 38 38 2,852 3,078
HigFREERARAE 109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e M HRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Appointed on 14 October 2020.

2. Appointed on 1 April 2020.

3. Appointed as independent non-executive director on 1 April 2020 and re-
designated as executive director on 15 September 2020.

4. Appointed on 7 December 2020.

5. Appointed on 15 September 2020.

6. Resigned on 1 April 2020.

7. Resigned on 1 April 2019.

8. Appointed on 1 March 2019 and resigned on 11 May 2020.
9. Appointed on 22 November 2019 and resigned on 15 September 2020.
10.  Appointed on 28 April 2020 and resigned on 3 December 2020.

1. Resigned on 1 January 2021.
12. Resigned on 1 January 2021.

13. Appointed on 1 January 2019 and resigned on 1 March 2021.

14. Resigned on 17 July 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors and chief operating decision-
maker as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no directors waived any
emoluments during the year (2019: HK$NIil).

110 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 Em#AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2019: two) is REAREFMALTEF —% (CE—AN
director whose emolument is disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the F M) BEEZMEHBNWE7IRE -
emoluments in respect of the other four (2019: three) individuals are as Himg (CTE2—NF =48) @lALZ

follows: B4R ZE00 T ¢
2020 2019
—ECE —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e REME 2,668 2,112
Discretionary bonuses IR TEAL - 56
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEHERR 72 54
2,740 2,222

Hthos CE-—AF  =%) Rz
BRIALTZMENFLUTEE :

The emoluments of the other four (2019: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

2020 2019

—TETH “E-NE

Number of Number of

employees employees

BE A EE AR

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 FHEITE1,000,00078 7T 4 3

BE_ZT_TFER_FT-AF+ZA
=+ —HLEFE &R RBARTE
AR HMA LTINS ERMALTER
HMARER R BIIZR > NFRBERIARE

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest
emoluments of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

9 LOSS PER SHARE 9 SkEE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) EREXEE
The calculation is based on the loss for the year attributable EREXNGEDLEARAEE A
to owners of the Company of HK$71,611,000 (2019: FELEERE71,611,0008 7T (=
HK$61,470,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary T—N4E 61,470,000 70) RE
shares of approximately 1,272,640,000 (2019: 1,272,640,000) AEZETETBERZMEFHHD
in issue during the year. 1,272,640,0008% (ZZT — N :
1,272,640,0008%) 5t & o

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) 5{7&1@?;@“@% i -
The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December EEE/:\*%%%E@?%E%‘ﬁe)%ﬁ%@
2020 and 2019 is the same as the basic loss per share as there R-BEZERFRIE-NEF

were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue. +TZR=+—HLEEEZESREF
18R G B A IEER

BRFFEERBRAT 111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
e 3

(WUHETTHIT)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

112

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 Y% BB K&

Furniture ~ Computers
Land and Leasehold and and other Motor
buildings  improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
EE)d
TiRET HREMELE GAREE Hith:R 1 pat: st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TET TET
Cost i
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E—F—H 49,484 3,495 3,448 1,476 2,677 60,580
Additions hE - 58 21 104 3,350 3,533
Disposals HE - 1) - - (140) (351)
Exchange adjustments SMERE - - - ) - 2)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-h&
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—-8k
“ZTEF-F-H 49,484 3,342 3,469 1,578 5,887 63,760
Additions RE = 21 75 29 1,530 1,855
Disposals HE - (1,258) (2,559) @ (2,638) (6,459)
Exchange adjustments SMEEFREE - = 1 ) > (1)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZ2E
+-A=+-8 49,484 2,305 986 1,601 4779 59,155
Accumulated depreciation REINE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&—HA—H 10,653 2,239 1,178 1,281 889 16,240
Charge for the year AEER 4,124 971 686 126 569 6,476
Eliminated on disposals R ER Y - (177) - - (140) (317)
Exchange adjustments SNERE - - - ) = 2
At 31 December 2019 and RIE—NE
1 January 2020 +ZA=+-8Bk
“ZEF—-F—H 14,777 3,033 1,864 1,405 1,318 22,397
Charge for the year AEE 4,124 269 496 97 1,030 6,016
Eliminated on disposals R EESH - (1,258) (1,532) @ (1,258) (4,052)
Exchange adjustments SMERRE - = = @) = 2)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZE
F=H=+F—FH 18,901 2,044 828 1,49 1,090 24,359
Carrying amount BRE(E
At 31 December 2020 RIBZRE
+-B=+—H 30,583 261 158 105 3,689 34,79
At 31 December 2019 RIE—hEF
+=B=+—H 34,707 309 1,605 173 4,569 41,363

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UETTHImR)
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ME - -BEKRKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged its land and buildings N_E _EF+_A=+—H, x&EH
and a motor vehicle with carrying amounts of HK$30,583,000 and B0 B3R EL AR [ {8 /330,583,000 7T &2
HK$1,326,000 (2019: HK$34,707,000 and HK$Nil) respectively to 1,326,000 75 (ZZ— .4 : 34,707,0007%
secure interest-bearing borrowings granted to the Group (see note 20). TTREBIT) 2 T RBFUR—5E
MIFERAEREE R M EER (RN
5520) °
The Group's land and buildings are all situated in Hong Kong under AEEZ T M REBFHEAMRER U
medium-term leases. HERFA-
HiathEERFRAR 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e M HRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

11 BEREE

Development Mobile
costs games Total
8% A s F ey 4Est
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET
Cost DN
At 1 January 2019 N_Z—hF—HF—H - 69,783 69,783
Additions //J\% 3,000 - 3,000
At 31 December 2019 and RIZT—hE
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—Hk
TETEFE—HF—H 3,000 69,783 72,783
Additions RE 2,760 - 2,760
Write off (note (c)) s (BFEEC) (3,000) = (3,000)
At 31 December 2020 N_E-EF+"H=+—H 2,760 69,783 72,543
Accumulated amortisation it KRR E
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 R-Z—hF—H8—H - 25,672 25,672
Charge for the year REENRR - 12,836 12,836
At 31 December 2019 and RN _E—N5E
1 January 2020 —l— B=+—Hk
—E2-FF—HF—H = 38,508 38,508
Charge for the year REEIFR - 12,272 12,272
Impairment loss (note (d)) BEEE (5Ed)) = 19,003 19,003
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+-A=+—H = 69,783 69,783
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 RN_E_EF+_HA=+—H 2,760 = 2,760
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hE+ZA=+—H 3,000 31,275 34,275

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 g |

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

11

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Development costs
Development costs represent expenditure incurred for developing
website and mobile applications that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h) and
are internally generated.

Amortisation

The amortisation charges of mobile games for the year are
included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

No amortisation charge of development costs was recognised
during 2020 and 2019 as the intangible assets were not yet
available for use up to 31 December 2020.

Write off

During 31 December 2020, the Group decided to write
off the development costs of mobile applications in view
of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic which has
caused further uncertainties in the Group’s developments
in mobile applications. As a result, the carrying amount of
the development costs of HK$3,000,000 was written off in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Impairment loss

On 31 December 2020, the management realised that the
performance of mobile games and applications segment was
worse than expected due to tough economic environment
and strong market competition. After the assessment on the
respective date, the management determined to recognise
impairment loss of HK$19,003,000 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

11

B EE (8

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PR

BA%E LA R R B MBA R F I FE A2
RFIEEZHY SHAXBRE
BB @AM EE2(0) BB RA
WEE

#
REEF BRI HA Bt AR
GRmRAZMTEM

R _TFER_T—HFELER
REERAEERY RAREE
TECEEF A=+ —HEZEE
FEERDMHER

5
RZBE_ZTF+"A=+—0H, &
RCOVID- 19K MITIREEH AEE
FHREREAHNEETELIREE
Mo REBREMBEFHERRER
PSR A e I B ABRE @
3,000,000/ Th AR &8 R A 1T
B 521 PO Bl

TREETIR
RoE-ZF+-"B=+—0Q0, %
EERARNRSHNLKRRE RS
BER R S 15 R E A 0 BB
ZEBLL AR ZE o AR B HAFTE
B EEEBRAENGEBEAERES
JR{EE5$819,003,00078 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e M HRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WAETTHIR)

12 GOODWILL 12 HE
2020 2019
—EZE —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Cost R Zs
At 1 January and 31 December W—BA—H&k+-B=+—H 109,669 109,669
Accumulated impairment RitRE
At 1 January ®—A—H 69,878 24,903
Impairment loss AEEE 19,555 44,975
At 31 December n+ZB=+—H 89,433 69,878
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December KW+ZA=+—H 20,236 39,791

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing

goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs")

identified according to country of operation and operating segment as

follows:

@ SHEZREELEMZHER

_t

HENREFERRBEEMERRKKLE
BRI ReELEMU (REELSE
fiL) » SFBEITF -

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit A”) - F&—FH (TEEfIA ) 20,236 20,236
Mobile games and applications — Hong Kong F 1348 f fEFA — & 748
(“Unit B”) (TEE (B ) - 19,555
20,236 39,791
116 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN:

e 3

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

12

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as follows:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the value-
in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes the
discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount
17.0%) that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU.

rate of approximately 17.0% (2019:

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2019: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the CGU
are as follows:
Budgeted market The values assigned to the assumption reflect
share past experience, except for the growth
factor, which is consistent with the directors’
estimation of the revenue from existing and
potential customers. The directors believe that
planned revenue growth per year for the next
five years is reasonably achievable.

Number of service In order to maintain successive business
contracts operations of the CGU, the directors believe
that there is no particular difficulty in renewal
of the service contracts of the existing

customers in the CGU.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

12 BE (@
EEDIREE B R E363E AN
eI BRI B 2 ARE 1T AT

EfA
REEFENZPIRBISERFEWA L
EREEZFEEE SEREEEERN

#ERE R FRE 2 METEE 2 BAEIRIA
EnE URRMIBEMSHEKEFEE
BzME IR ELBASE AR ZIRAT
BEIRZEL917.0% (ZZ—NF 1 17.0%) ©

REEHEZRERERIENEERE
HEREREREEE P ZBRAW@mIE
H-BELFHRZRESRECKARESF
IBREK30% (CE—NEF 13.0%) HEH &
BEREFEBTSZRITIOERR

REEFTENEREEFEMAZIE
RE40F -
REMHNER 1Ex RPTEEZ BERMRE
T B RAREI -
ﬁi%%%%@ﬁﬁ&‘%
ERER Z WP EE s —
HR-BFRRE RKRLE
ZBFHBWHIERI S
HEER-
RBENHE RERFREELE Tﬂ—;”;
KREXT EFMERE
“Efﬁﬁéiﬁuqﬂfﬁﬁﬁ
R Z R & A9 #4555l
o

EFRR IROSBR&EZ TZRKRU
BERERGEAEES TEERRTEE
B 7 AREEBBHE P[] £ 8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

12 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

118

Unit B

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the value-
in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes the
discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 22.4% (2019: 25.6%) that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2019: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 have been referenced to the valuation report prepared
by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent professional

valuer.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

12 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Unit B (Continued)
The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the CGU

are as follows:

Budgeted market
share

Budgeted income

The values assigned to the assumption reflect
past experience, except for the growth
factor, which is consistent with the directors’
estimation of the revenue from existing and
potential customers. The directors believe that
planned revenue growth per year for the next
five years is reasonably achievable.

It includes estimated income from existing
mobiles games and applications and these
products in the pipeline, taking into account
games and applications popularity and its
income patterns, industry growth and the
Group's strategy in operation. The directors
believe this budgeted income is justified given
the strong game development capability and
experience of games, the cooperation with
major third-party distribution platforms and the
historical record of developing its games.

The impairment testing resulted in an impairment of HK$19,555,000
(2019: HK$44,975,000) recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. The impairment arose in

view of the deterioration in revenue level and operating results of the

CGU in the current year and current economic environment in Hong

Kong.

12 &8 (@
E(IB (&
ReEE B EREEHHAAZIE
BRI :

BEMHMNE RRAEEZEBERRE
R WBRARRI -
HEEHRBEARE
EERZ WP EE s —
RN-BFMEE RELEF
ZBFHBWHIERT S
HEH-

FAFWA BERBREBE FHIEE

RERBURE®HT FH

TR FE A Z i ET IR A

EPERIBEERERR

B2 EREBAE

TEERREERZEE

RE-EFMHERE ENEB

SHEIFHEE N R EEEE

BARIBE=FDHET

BEFU RS ERZE

SERLER MEBRBAEWA

BEE-

BEAHXESNREE_ZE_TE+_"H4
=+—BLEFEZEEEBaRAERRE
19,555,000 7T (ZZ—L.4E © 44,975,000
) oRETHEAFEREES BN
KRS E BRI R EBIREF 2 LEIR
RFTE
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kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

13

120

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES

13

RAEFEFZIRE
2020 2019
T HE “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T TA7T

Unlisted equity securities JE TR AR S

= 152

The unlisted equity securities represented 5% equity interests in
Metro Rainbow Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI and has
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fligro Limited (formerly known as Online
Troop Company Limited) (together “Metro Group”). Metro Group
is engaged in online shopping business. The Group designated its
investment in Metro Group at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment
is held for strategic purposes. No dividends were received on this
investment during the year (2019: HK$Nil).

On 19 May 2020, the Group disposed of all of its equity interest in
Metro Group for a cash consideration of US$1 to an independent third

party.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

ZIE LA EE S5 &R Metro Rainbow
Limited (—ER EBELZESFMAIL
ZAE) REZ2EKEAEFligro Limited
(F1#EONline Troop Company Limited) (#:
& T MetrofE @) Z5% MR A 2 B15
Metrofe Bt SE4E LY - M BRI
B RERS AR AEBEIEEHR Metro
E@ZHEBBFVOCI (RoJEE) stE -
FRUEEFNLBLERRERRE (T2
—NEF BT o

REZB_ZFRA+TNAE sEBE—%
BIUFE =7 HEHERMetroEE 2 B A
i RERBERIET



14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

14 FREESE

Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEME _E #ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7T FAET FHET
Cost 7%
At 1 January 2019 nZZ2—nF—HF—H 3,835 3,394 7,229
Additions AE 2,149 - 2,149
Adjustment as a result of early FiZRT#A LA E MR
termination of leases (3,357) - (3,357)
Exchange adjustments SRR EE (2) - )
At 31 December 2019 and RZ2-—AF+ZB=+—8H
1 January 2020 M_E2-ZEF—HF—H 2,625 3,394 6,019
Adjustment as a result of early Riepi4& EFAEMmAZE
termination of leases (632) - (632)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR = (3,394) (3,394)
Write off b6z (442) = (442)
Exchange adjustments HMEESHEE 4 = 4
At 31 December 2020 RZE2E_EF+_-_HB=+—H 1,555 - 1,555
Accumulated depreciation EEtinE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hF—HF—H = = =
Charge for the year REEIFR 3,049 1,096 4,145
Adjustment as a result of early RieAi4& IEFAEmaAEE
termination of leases (2,228) - (2,228)
Exchange adjustments HMNEETREE (1) = (1)
At 31 December 2019 and N_Z—hF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 rR—_E"ZEF—H—H 820 1,096 1,916
Charge for the year REENR 980 1,004 1,984
Adjustment as a result of early FiRAIA& LT EMmAEE
termination of leases (332) - (332)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR = (2,100) (2,100)
Write off 62| (442) = (442)
Exchange adjustment SN BESHEL 1 - 1
At 31 December 2020 RZE2_ZF+_HA=+—H 1,027 - 1,027
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF+_"HF=+—H 528 - 528
At 31 December 2019 R_E2—NF+_B=+—H 1,805 2,298 4,103
HigFREERARAE 121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UAETTIIR)
14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 14 EREEE (@)
The Group has obtained the right to use of certain properties as its REECDFBEHERRESETYEZE
office premises through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run AREAERAENE -ZSHEREA
for a period of 2 to 3 years (2019: 2 to 3 years). None of the leases BZE=FCE2—NF ZE=F) - %%
includes variable lease payments. HESTEaERENN-
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 21. HEBBZHRD BN MHIEE210
15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 15 GHNEERAER
(a) Contract assets (a) SHEE
2020 2019
—E-TH &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Avrising from performance under licensing FEB{TEFa] L HEPRE L
arrangement - 3,865
The Group recognised revenue from licensing arrangements KEERFBRAEBRERAER
at a point in time upon the licensees had the rights to use the MBERAANEBRASFRGENIZ
Group's intellectual property and the Group had conditionally 5T B R 175 5% P & AT SRR R U ER (B
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set out in Z R KRBT
the licensing agreements. Yz o
122 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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foo

R E MBI RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)
(b) Contract liabilities
These represent billings in advance of performance under IT
service contracts with customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the service
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds
the amount of the deposits. The Group typically receives a
certain deposit, which is negotiated on case by case basis with
customers, on acceptance of IT service contracts.

15 SHNEERERE @

(b) SHEME
ZETRERHEBRTUZENRK
ARF AHITE T EAITRURRIA °

fisl A< £ B 7 AR 75 P sa A W B A% =&
BN eNRBRELESL
afR EEAMAERERNDBESE
BRELBEAIL -KNER—RKRTWE
ET#E ARRSERMNERR
ERBaNREREENFERER

FiEe
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January R—B—H 5,196 6,735
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result ~ FAFATEE R Z W st A
of recognising revenue during the REN 2z ENEEER
year that was included in the contract sHa/EED
liabilities at the beginning of the year (4,297) (6,634)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result ~ HPENRERB OB TELY
of billing in advance of performance FBUFIEER SN B EIE M
under IT service contracts 19,037 18,568
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result ~ FHAREERNERHTENERE
of recognising revenue in respect of HEkRERSNaERD
the new contract liabilities entitled
during the year (16,106) (13,473)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 3,830 5,196

The amount of billings in advance of performance expected
to be recognised as revenue after more than one year is
HK$226,000 (2019: HK$179,000).

TR B —FRER AW R Z B
KFBUER B 38 43226,00078 7T (=
T—E 179,000 7T) °
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(WAETTHIR)

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

124

16 FEUNERTR B H fh FE U TR

2020 2019

—E_EF —Z—NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Gross amount of trade receivables FEUR AR FR 4B %8 7,641 6,053
Less: loss allowance B ESiE (5,554) (118)
2,087 5,935

Deposits and other receivables & R EMERER 5,228 5,877
Prepayments FETIR 6,455 2,376
13,770 14,188

All of the Group's trade and other receivables, apart from certain
deposits and prepayments of HK$3,311,000 (2019: HK$245,000),
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M ERRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as

ARl T

16 FEURARTR B E M FE Uk ()

RREHR > BUERFIREER B RN
PRESIR B Z BRES AN T

follows:
2020 2019
—EEHF —Z—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month DR—1E A 676 1,673
More than 1 but less than 3 months BE—mEaEBILR=EA 694 505
More than 3 but less than 6 months BE=Ea B L LrNER 301 2,053
More than 6 but less than 12 months BEANEA B LR+ @R 416 1,704
2,087 5,935

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 26(a).

FEEEEERRUKBIRMELEZEE
Bz BZEIRE I MEE26()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

17 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 17 BRERRAS
The Group's loans and interest receivables arise from the money REEZEWERERAEEHERABZEN
lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned BRAEINEBREERZKNEEREE
subsidiary of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain strict control FoREBNORBERERBBER LT
over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to minimise credit BHEFBREES UEE2RIVEERR -
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. B RRHEIEETHRE S -
2020 2019
ZEIEE “E-nE
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
e ISR 4Bt B3En HEBD st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
Secured loans by: UFHISEEAERZ
ERER
- mortgage —1%1% 5,000 - 5,000 12,000 697 12,697
- personal guarantees —BAER 48,178 4,733 52,911 55,300 3,125 58,425
Unsecured loans EIREED 42,167 4,779 46,946 43,265 2,648 45913
95,345 9,512 104,857 110,565 6,470 117,035
Less: loss allowance B R (18,735) (3.356) (22,091) (4,520) (412) (4,932)
76,610 6,156 82,766 106,045 6,058 112,103

126

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 10.0% to
58.9% (2019: 10.0% to 58.9%) per annum and repayable on maturity
date under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in

writing by the Group.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M ERRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

17 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

17 BRERKEFE (@)

(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due date: IRE DITRIBESEZIHAHGES ©
2020 2019
ZZIZE —2-NF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
SR ISR 485t 3D GEE: b a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FHET FET
Current (not past due) mE (KA 67,095 2,822 69,917 81,625 4,756 86,381
Less than 3 months past due HEOR=EA - 1,626 1,626 24,420 1,302 25,722
3 to 6 months past due AA=Z8AR 1,507 566 2,073 - - -
Over 6 months past due AHAEANE 8,008 1,142 9,150 - - -
76,610 6,156 82,766 106,045 6,058 112,103

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are neither

past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical

information about counterparty default rates. The existing

counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 26(a).

18

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank

and on hand

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents of

the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted
to HK$679,000 (2019: HK$2,716,000). The RMB is not

freely convertible into other currencies, however, under

Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB

for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

18

AR A SRR e
E2 AW RO ZBEERE
Sh o AR BB LA -

BERAEBREEBRRNELFBHMNME
26(a)°

HERkHEEEMRHEMER

EREEEH

(@) HARIRITRFEREZHZE
RBELEEY
AT EFE+ZRA=+—H, &
EEMUARE TARKE)) stEZR
ERIAEZEBEWA679,00087T (=
T—EE :2,716,00087T) - AR
THEEHRRBKREEME AT 1R
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7177 g |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

18

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

128

18 RERREFEMREMMER
EREBEN (@)
(b) BREZHELZEBYRK

TR AEEREMEETHZE
BEE (BERERFRTES) 5F
B-BEMELTHEEZEBERER

ERERARKBEREFTLER
RERERERFTHDEAMELTH

financing activities. sz RERg8zaEe°
Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
F3 SR HEaRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE7T FHET FHET
(note 20) (note 21)
(Hyz£20) (F3zE21)
At 1 January 2019 R-E-h&%—BA—H 33,000 7,023 40,023
Changes from financing MEEHREREEE .
cash flows:
Capital element of lease BENHEEREZ
rentals paid KI5 - (4,031) (4,031)
Interest element of lease ENHEEHREEZ
rentals paid B & = (299) (299)
Interest paid BENFIE (2,028) = (2,028)
Proceeds from new bank loans MIRITEMPTRRIE 43,200 = 43,200
New loan from a third party FEH— %%_Ez%féf 10,000 = 10,000
Repayment of bank loans EiZIR1TER (2,934) = (2,934)
Loans repayment to third parties B = HEEER (43,000) = (43,000)
5,238 (4,330) 908
Other changes: Hfth & & .
Increase in lease liabilities from SIMNHMEEEEZ
entering into new leases HESEEM = 2,149 2,149
Adjustment as a result of early RIERT4R IETAE A%
termination of leases - (1,149) (1,149)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) MERZ (EE5) 2,028 299 2,327
Exchange adjustments S BE S 2L - (1) (1)
2,028 1,298 3,326
At 31 December 2019 and R-E—hEF
1 January 2020 +=ZB=+—H&
—E_FH5—A—H 40,266 3,991 44,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 18 REKBEEHEYREMIF

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EREEF (@)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)) ERETEHELEZEEHEK
activities (Continued) (#)
Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
Ff BAEFR HEaR #azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(note 20) (note 21)
(Hg5E£20) (Mf5E21)
Changes from financing REESREREEH .
cash flows:
Capital element of lease BENHEEREEZ
rentals paid KEED - (1,687) (1,687)
Interest element of lease ENHEEREZ
rentals paid FMEED = (143) (143)
Interest paid 2F 8 (1,753) - (1,753)
New loans from third parties KEE=ZFHZHER 1,900 - 1,900
Repayment of bank loans BERIBITTER (4,106) - (4,106)
Loan repayment to a third party ~ HE—RZHE=HEEEN (1,000) = (1,000)
(4,959) (1,830) (6,789)
Other changes: H{th &g .
Adjustment as a result of early FiRFI A& LT E M
termination of leases - (316) (316)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(b)) H & K& A S (FfzE29(b)) - (1,443) (1,443)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) MERZ (IEE5) 1,753 143 1,896
Exchange adjustments SRR EE = ) )
1,753 (1,618) 135
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEHF
+—H=+—H 37,060 543 37,603
HRFREEBRAR 129
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

19

20

130

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19 FEIERFRE E M FE {7k

2020 2019

—ECTF —Z2—NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Trade payables FETBR X 1,446 1,405
Accrued charges and other payables fESTE A & EAMFE TR 1,756 1,246
3,202 2,651

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year
or repayable on demand.

Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the following ageing

PRA BT IR Bt A R TR R I — 5
WBEIIZERER

ST AR ERBIFEN E ZIRIEN IR S IR

analysis as of the end of the reporting period: BERE DU ©
2020 2019
—ECE —Z—hnEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Due within 1 month or on demand —{8 8 A EI AR R E K 1,446 1,405

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The interest-bearing borrowings are repayable within one year or on
demand (including those with repayable on demand clause).

20 MtE{E
MEERER—ERNEERIZEREER
(BIERAREREBERZER

2020 2019

—ECEF “—Z—hnEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Bank loans RITEN 36,160 40,266
Loan from a third party KE—RE=FZEXR 900 =
37,060 40,266

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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20

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

The maturity of interest-bearing borrowings, based on the schedule
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, is as follows:

AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

bt S &R ()

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

More than 5 years

—FREMER
MEBRELFR

MY S ERRE D B ek P 8 TA R AR B
ZHABRINE
2020 2019
—EBIEH ZE-hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAT
15,214 14,105
1,776 4,314
2,849 3,639
17,221 18,208
37,060 40,266

Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note

26(0).

The interest-bearing borrowings are secured by the Group’s land
and buildings and a motor vehicle with carrying amounts of
HK$30,583,000 and HK$1,326,000 (2019: HK$34,707,000 and
HK$Nil) respectively and corporate guarantee from the Company and

two subsidiaries.

B EERERAR
FE252020

FEREZ ARG RF BB MIEE26(0)

EREBAEBRERED A
30,583,00058 7T & 1,326,00058 7T (ZB—7,
£F 1 34,707,000 TR ZHEIT) 2 T KIE
F R — 8 B MR A A B e i 1 B B8 /A B
ZATHERIER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LLABTTHIR)
21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 #HE&AE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the TRETAEEHESEZHGREOH
Group's lease liabilities: R :
2020 2019
—EEHF —Z—NF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHEE RIEHEE REHEE REHEE
IR E R4 %E IRIRE I FRAREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT TAT TE&T
Within 1 year —FR 543 555 2,724 2,850
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBERENRN - - 1,267 1,289
543 555 3,991 4,139
Less: total future interest expenses 78 : 2R ZRF) B A sz 4828 (12) (148)
Present value of lease liabilities HESRRE 543 3,991
132 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UETTHImR)
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 REMBRRRZAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current tax payable in the consolidated (a) WEHMBRLXRXZEMEH
statement of financial position represents: RIELS -
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance of profits tax provision relating to MU{EEE 2 F1SMR B H 46k
prior year 53 715
(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (b) BEFRZEEREBEELSE &
&
The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RGBT RER 2 EIER IS
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BE/ (AR BORENESEHZY
movements during the year are as follows: mr:
Fair value

Tax allowance  adjustment

in excess of on
Deferred tax assets/ Tax  the related intangible
(liabilities) arising from: losses amortisation assets Total

wamm  EhEE
Bz  ZATE

REREBEEE (BF) EE£H . RIEEE MIgEE HE Hact
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET TR
At 1 January 2019 W_EB—hE—HB—H 1,248 (497) (6,781) (6,030)
Credited to profit or loss RE@mEt A - - 2,118 2,118
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ—NEF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—8kK
T TF—F—H 1,248 (497) (4,663) (3,912)
Credited to profit or loss REmaEt A - 497 4,663 5,160
At 31 December 2020 R-TZ2F
+-B=+—H 1,248 - - 1,248
HigFREERARAE 133
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22

AT ER R I 5E

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(0

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$97,903,000 (2019: HK$82,507,000).
Of which, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses to the extent of approximately
HK$7,565,000 (2019: HK$7,565,000). The Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the remaining tax
losses of approximately HK$90,338,000 (2019: HK$74,942,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Of the total
unrecognised tax losses, HK$1,658,000 (2019: HK$5,096,000)
will be expired within 5 years and the remaining tax losses of
HK$88,680,000 (2019: HK$69,846,000) have no expiry date
under the current tax legislation. Other temporary differences are
not material.

23 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF

134

Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance

(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed

under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The

MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered

by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and

its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme

at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly

relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest

immediately.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

22

23

R MBINRRZAEH

=}

(€ HEXBRZEBEERBEE ~
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EE REHRIER1E47%497,903,00078
7t (ZZF—H.4 : 82,507,000 7T) °
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IEIEFRIAE E#Y7,565,00058 7T (=
T—H 4 © 7,565,00057T) ° AR
KA RE A e AEE I E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

23

24

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

The employees of a subsidiary in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the relevant
local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiary is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic salary of
its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
in respect of the retirement of its employees.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme which was adopted on 25 November 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant share options to the eligible
participants including any employees, directors, suppliers, consultants,
agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion of the board
of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and motivate their
contributions to the Group.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the definition
of “Invested Entity” be added to the New Share Option Scheme
(" Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

23

24

EFRHRRR AT E (B)

—EPENBE AR ZEES TR
HAEREEZEARENRHKEMNFTEZ
RE -ZMBABRZHEEZELFHE
ZETHEDLERRKEF FRIER BFRE
EHMIN BARAEKEARBERERARZ AR
YRR ZE—F EE - AXEBERIK
B BB R R NES S Z 2ERRIK
TEHe

ARBEERR FAEAR_TFER
“E-hEF+ZA=+—H IEEEA
HHESRAKZEATAER-

URBEHZRINRZS

RZF-—=F1BN\B xREANKRE
FARERBAMKILERKRETS (TEHE
fetEstdl) > DR -EE=F+—HA"+4h
B 2 BIEREE MR BRI S
B (Grfghcrestdl) - Bt AR EEE
ARNERGER2EE (BEEE - ES
HES Bl NERERNNESE
ERBBREZEMAD BEERE 5
EBEEREBREHRERFLHER -

R ZE-—REMNBZ+Hh B BKRENE
RREHAELBBEERERR HFBER
BB T IRERSHE RREER 2
EHRETETL A B8 (T
BRiEstRIESTY)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

136

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of the
Company, the maximum number of shares available for subscription
under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i) The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of its
issued share capital from time to time; and

(i) The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under Amendments to the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of the approval of Amendments to the New Share
Option Scheme/at the date of passing the relevant resolution in
general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in general meeting
of the Company.

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates must be approved by
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the proposed grantee of the options).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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24

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration for a grant
of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board of
directors providing that the price shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the offer, which must
be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the shares on GEM
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares.

The total number of share option that could be granted was limited
to 127,264,000 shares at par value of HK$0.04 each, representing
approximately 10% of the total issued shares of the Company on the
date of passing the resolution to refresh the New Share Option Scheme
limit at the annual general meeting on 25 June 2018.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme was granted or outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

24

URAKEEZRIBRXZ (B)
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WBUIFATEFIRSSAZEMTHE
ABRRZ ERERE MBBEETRG
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25 BRKHE
(a) Share capital (a) g7
Authorised and issued share capital EER BEITRAK
Number of
shares Amount
e E £
‘000 HK$'000
T TET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares ZiER
At 31 December 2019 and NZE2—hF+ZA=+—H8B&
31 December 2020 of HK$0.04 each ECEF+_HA=+—H
SR EE0.047%E T 3,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRARE :
Ordinary shares ZiER
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ—NF+A=+—HK
31 December 2020 of HK$0.04 each _E_EF+_A=+—H
SREE0.048 T 1,272,640 50,906

138

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ir)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall in the ordinary
course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution from
shareholders in the form of interest-free loans. The
amounts are estimated by discounting the nominal value
of their non-interest-bearing loans to the Group at current
market interest rate for similar financial instruments.
An early repayment of interest-free loans represents a
reduction in contribution from shareholders and reduces
capital reserve accordingly.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company and
the Group's former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(v).

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” that are held at the end of the
reporting period (see note 2(f)).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the excess of the
consideration received for the disposal of 20% equity
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary over the
increase in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests of HK$3,000 (2019: HK$3,000); and (ii) the
excess of cash consideration paid for acquisition of
additional interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries over
the increase in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests of HK$418,000 (2019: HK$102,000).

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

25 BRKi#HE (@)
(b) FEBZMHERMER )
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RERRTERBEEBYHBR
SEABRTEMIAIBE
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AT ER R I 5E

25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

140

(9]

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments as to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities), less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an
ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the recommendation
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as
well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

(d) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company is
HK$20,733,000 (2019: HK$96,879,000).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

25 BEKGHEE (@)

(c)

(d)

BFxE®E
FEREREAZHEERAER
i fn S AR TS 2 AR ET I B2 L A8
B2 KT RIZGENANEEME
REAERGBEEEERB 2K
TR T A 78 7 AR BR AR 1A O] 3R B A ELAth
EmrA AW RE D

FEFEBG N ERHEARERRE
B RER UWERSRELCRE
MEEEHBEZBSEEKTER
FZERARRERZTFERREZ
BIERS T 17 > 3 (K PR A IR 15 2
{EHERRBIFHHE

FEEDERABRERFEHELRL
KRB BEHBERER Bl
EORPAREHFEIEERRES
BER (BENSERREEER) A
RERBREFEY - EHEELE
EFrARmIEE -

KRREEHBEERNELER - F
RIEBRZBD EFEEEHR
BRARA - AERBRIBEER 2
BERBBIURE ETHERU
REITHES T O HERE R ERE

FABREEMAMERREAZI
SN2 B EFTPRS]

RZEZZF+ZB=+—H,d
ERARFTARBHEA A ZHER
267320,733,00087¢ (Z2— N4 :
96,879,000387T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these

risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by

the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its

contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other

receivables, contract assets and loans and interest receivables.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash

equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks for

which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

()

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has a concentration of
credit risk as 51% (2019: 39%) and 83% (2019: 83%)
of total trade receivables and contract assets was due
from the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history,
financial position and other factors. Trade receivables are
due within 30 days from the billing date.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

26 HMREGEERESRTAA
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EMERAERRZTHMBEEZA
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BEERAEREL ZEWRIRRE
BHEEREZEERRKRES
ERA51% (CE—HE:
39%) K83% (ZEB—hF !
83%) °

HRFEERBBRETEES
Bz ERETETENEST
fhoZFNMERER ZBE
TRRECER ~ SR S ELAth A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LLABTTHIR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (@
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EEERE (&)
() Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) ()  EWERF R EHEE (B
The following table provides information about the TRIBHARFAAEEMEUER
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade ARENEEMMAEZEER
receivables and contract assets: BT EEREZER
2020
—ECEE
Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BEE IRE4E(E EREE IRERME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
Trade receivables FEURERTR
Current (not past due) e GRiEEn) 3.20% 699 (22) 677
Less than 1 month past due wER DR —E A 3.40% 585 (20) 565
1 to 3 months past due BR—E==@A 3.94% 432 (17) 415
3 to 6 months past due BEA=FNMEAR 4.53% 375 (17) 358
6 to 12 months past due BHAETZEA 98.15% 3,950 (3.878) 72
More than 12 months past due B+ @R MU L 100.00% 1,600 (1,600) =
7,641 (5,554) 2,087
2019
“E-hF
Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
TEHATF Y
=B IREAEE iR IREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET
Contract assets BHEE
Current (not past due) ) CGRIEER) 0.26% 3,875 (10) 3,865
Trade receivables FEURBR R
Current (not past due) E) CRaA) 0.26% 1,677 @) 1,673
Less than 1 month past due wEA DR —E B 0.51% 483 ) 481
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=EA 1.03% 386 @) 382
3 to 6 months past due BHR=ZEE 2.05% 1,767 (36) 1,731
6 to 12 months past due BHAAE+T_EA 4.10% 1,740 (72) 1,668
6,053 (118) 5,935
142 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEEE (4B)

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) () BRI RENEE (B)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience TERRES IE R B A F E BN E
in current year. These rates are adjusted to reflect BRBREH ZELLEXBEY
differences between economic conditions during the FAE - UM BEEE B FEE
period over which the historic data has been collected, AR A Z BRI BRI
current conditions and the Group's view of forward- e AR S B R UGN 2 TERR 5
looking economic conditions over the expected lives of the NZBIEEEERRZERZ
receivables. BlzZEREo
Movement in loss allowance in respect of trade receivables FEUWBR R R S 4T E B 2 538 15
and contract assets is as follows: HEH

Trade Contract
receivables assets Total
FE U BR =R BHNEE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—NF—F—H 23 3 26
Amounts written off as uncollectible 5% i [0] 3 4l £ 70 18 (18) = (18)
Impairment losses recognised RERBERER
during the year BRI 113 7 120
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ—NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—8Bk
“ZZF—HF—H 118 10 128
Transfer g 10 (10) =
Amounts written off as uncollectible &% Uk [2] 5 #5570 I8 (31) = (31
Impairment losses recognised RERABERRZ
during the year BB E 5,457 = 5,457
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZF
+—-A=+—H 5,554 - 5,554

REREHARE > Bst A AR
B IR E AR

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

BpTEERERAR 143

FE252020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e M HRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.

144 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WAETTHIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's

ECL model for the loans and interest receivables is as

follows:

Category
el

Definition of category

FHES

26 HMREGEERESRTAA

FE (&)

(a) 1EEERE ()
(i) ERESRFIE (&)

FEBERNBRERRMNEZ
FREEEBRENREZR

B I

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

FEHEEEERE L HREE

Stage 1

S 1PEER

Stage 2

SE2BEER

Stage 3

E3MEER

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.

EE R B MRk E R H IR ARIE
MERELEBIURHREEREZ AR

Exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but are not credit-impaired.
=& R B2 B LR H IR ARG Nt
TR IR EEREZ B

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

HEERZEEZ (Mt RRREREED
MEEBZ -—BNZTEEMN ARRTER
HIREEBRIE-

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

HESREARR+ —EANELEENEMFZA
FENEARRE Z 2 ITEHIE IR AR 7 o

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

WREERGE A RMEBETEMEE
Z O EREHR) o

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

T 50 2 HATR RS 18 31 /8 R B PR A 2L 1 8
PRAS (0 FR#EH) MIFRRMARE U EF R

Wz o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

146

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted approximately 26% and 51% (2019: 22% and
44%) of the Group's loans receivable balance respectively
as at 31 December 2020.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables and
loans and interest receivables are set out in notes 16 and
17 respectively.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

26

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (@)

(a) 1EEERE ()

(i)

[ENEFRFE (B)
BFRABHNAIARERZ
EBRDMEEREER 2 F
F+ZA=+—HZREWER
BREEZN26%%51% (ZE—H
1 22%K44%) ©

EXARRUEREEZEE
REBRRAREE ZER S (W
E) MBAERE AERLE
REESAEREREERR
Z1EfELR

BRI EBEREMBREA KR
FEWERRFEMEAZZEE
[BBR 23— BUR IR T 9 Bl E
RHIEE165217 ©
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kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest

(ir)

26 HMREGEERESRTAA

FE (48)
(a) EERE

()

(i) ERESRFIE (&)

RWER RN S Z BT REH

receivables are as follows: W
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIREER B2 EL E3MEER fst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
Gross amount of loans and BWERRAIEZ
interest receivables k]
At 1 January 2019 RZIZE-hE—F—H 110,798 - - 110,798
New originated WEL 64,884 - - 64,884
Transfer =35 (3,688) 3,688 - -
Repaid during the year RERERER (58,620) = = (58,620)
Write off b6} (27) = = 27)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE—hE
1 January 2020 +ZA=T—Hk
2" F%—-F—H 113,347 3,688 - 117,035
New originated HMEE 15,811 29 = 15,840
Transfer Bk (34,604) 34,604 = =
Transfer as consideration of BEEEEWERE
asset acquisition® (1,530) - - (1,530)
Repaid during the year RENESR (26,242) (150) = (26,392)
Write off HisH - (96) = (96)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZHF
+-B=+—H 66,782 38,075 - 104,857
By class at 31 December 2020 BOBEEY R-E-TE
+ZRA=+—-H
— Loans receivable —RUWER 64,829 30,516 = 95,345
~ Interest receivables —FEUH 2 1,953 7,559 = 9,512
66,782 38,075 - 104,857
By class at 31 December 2019  HAEEF RZZT—h&E
+ZA=+-H
— Loans receivable —EIRER 107,287 3,278 - 110,565
— Interest receivables —FEUH 2 6,060 410 = 6,470
113,347 3,688 - 117,035
# On 28 April 2020, the Group acquired a motor vehicle # “Z2TZEFWMA-—+N\B>

of HK$1,530,000 from its loan borrower in which the
consideration was satisfied by loans and interest receivables and
constituted a non-cash transaction.

AEBBHERERAEBE
{81&1,530,00078 7oAV — 875
HoREBURKREREANE
T EERIFRER G
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (@
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEEE (8B)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued) (i)  [EWERFE )
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL TEETERRE EREEE 2 28
allowances is as follows: DA -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIREER SH2MEER FIREER fst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FET FERT
ECL allowance of loans and BREZRAIEZ
interest receivables AR ER B RAE
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hE—F—H 82 - - 82
New originated WMEE 1,170 - - 1,170
Transfer to lifetime ECLs not BREERHIREERE
credit-impaired Z2HBREERE @) 8 - -
Impact on year ended ECLs of FRZMEEL 2 SRS
exposures transferred between EEE?EHW B8
stages during the year pd -7 - 3,680 - 3,680
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ—-h&E+"8
1 January 2020 s i = -
—A—H 1,244 3,688 - 4932
New originated MEE 296 29 = 325
Transfer to lifetime ECLs not BEERHREENE
credit-impaired Z2BEREERE (198) 198 - -
Impact on year ended ECLs of FREMEE 2 EEEH
exposures transferred between EX?EHH EEBE
stages during the year pa-Z 4 = 16,834 = 16,834
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEE
+ZB=1+—H 1,342 20,749 = 22,091
By class at 31 December 2020 1&5_}:5 i’r t- 23
~ Loans receivable —F”ELI&C%%X_ 1,338 17,397 = 18,735
— Interest receivables —FEUH 2 4 3,352 = 3,356
1,342 20,749 - 22,091
By class at 31 December 2019 BABEEY RZE—h&E
+-A=+—-H
— Loans receivable — UG 1,242 3,278 = 4,520
~ Interest receivables —EWFI 8 2 410 = 412
1,244 3,688 - 4932

No significant changes to estimation techniques or

assumptions were made during the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UAETTIIR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEEE (4B)
(i)~ Other financial assets at amortised cost (i) IR AR A%
B E
Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash FRESE R ASBR 2 Hth SR E
and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables. EORERERIREEEY 12
The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately SREMEWR - AEEFEB
providing for expected credit losses on a timely KRERIEREERBIEREE TR
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, BE UBREEERBRAK-
the Group considers historical loss rates for each RErBEAEEHBEXE &
category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking EEeETESBRIR 2B
macroeconomic data. BB W RLAIEM R
HIRIEHAE -
(b) Liquidity risk (b) TEE LR
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEBRELZSEESREEELRS
for their own cash management, including the short-term Z2HR+ER QiERERGZEH
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover RERIBMERUENEHRRESE
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly BoAREBRZBERTEHEZEER
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains BESRER UBRFREFTZERE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of RERRHEEESR UENERE
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer HARERRBEEER
term.
HRFREEBRAR 149
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

150

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities

at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial

liabilities, which is based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

(including interest payments computed using contractual rates

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting

period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (@)

(b) FEEZmE (&)

TRITAERBZEMEBNERS
AR Z B TEIQEEA HERE
SIMARMRIRENE (BEERTY
MEFEZMERE AT R
ARBREHRZRTAEFE) U
RAEEPERERNRZRFR
2

2020

—E_%
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow  on demand 5 years
BETARIER  —FEREIH LHR—F
IREE RERENE HERER EOREE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FTHET FTHET
Trade and other payables AT AR RS ELA FE 1 3% 3,202 3,202 3,202 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 543 555 555 -
Interest-bearing borrowings LRESY =R 37,060 37,105 37,105 -
40,805 40,862 40,862 -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

26

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (@)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)) TEELEE ()
2019

—T-hEF
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BEIARME  —FNEH ZR—EF
REE ReEn2LE SEEK BLRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
Trade and other payables & A BR 0 e EL A FE 1 7R 2,651 2,651 2,651 =
Lease liabilities HE&RE 3,991 4,139 2,850 1,289
Interest-bearing borrowings IRSRERA 40,266 40,312 40,312 =
46,908 47,102 45,813 1,289

Interest rate risk (c) FIFEEEE

(c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from loans

receivable, lease liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings.

Borrowings issued at fixed rate and variable rates expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate

risk respectively. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out below.

FEEZHXRABIERGEREE
FoHEEERNEER ER KT
BEERLEEBADNAZATE
MxEERRERENXAR &
ERRENAERZANERETHY
e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UAETTIIR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UFEEEEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (48)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIERE (&)
() Interest rate profile Q)  FIFEHS
The following table details the interest rate profile of TEREMN RS IR ER G
the Group's interest-earning loans and interest-bearing EEREWEGERZFEA
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. Bo
2020 2019
ZEIZE “E-hE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BIEFIE BERAx
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
TR T
Net fixed rate deposits/ TREER/ (B 38
(borrowings):
Loans receivable W ER 10.0% - 58.9% 76,610 10.0% -58.9% 106,045
Interest-bearing borrowings K EER 6.0% (900) N/A R EH -
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.4% (543)  3.5%-54% (3,991)
75,167 102,054
Variable rate borrowings BEMEwR
Interest-bearing borrowings T EER 3.8% -5.3% (36,160)  3.8% -5.3% (40,266)
Net exposure RS 39,007 61,788
152 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(WUHETTHIT)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$151,000 (2019: HK$168,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019.

(d) Currency risk

The Group's business activities and its assets and liabilities were

denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management considers the

Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as most

sales, income, purchases and expenses are denominated in the

functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The

Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure

and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

(9]

(d)

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (@)

FiEm Bz ()

(i) SRETHT
R T EFE+ZA=+—
B st A REfT A HihE e
REAEZERT EFH S TH
SOfEEE > FIbiE L 1A
EERREBHEERRER
#9151,0008 7T (ZZ—LF .
168,0005 7T) ©

M ESRED T BRI XRE
PENREARELEMEE
TWERAERZARTZ TR
TERZAMEREE 25085
IBIESRIEREREEMNBET
—(EFERSRMEGEER
EZMEREHT L —T—N
FETZDTRAERER

EEmEE
FEBREBLIHREEERARL
BTRAREIE BEEERAE
EETEIBERIIMNERR B
REPDIHE ~ IRA - BBE RFZIFI
HRRMEH 2SR E T&E
B B A S SME R PR A 0 B
BESERIINERRRRINABER
ERETMERINERE
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& =
e R R M EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AUBTTHITR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 MEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (@
(CONTINUED)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) TFHMTERIER
2020 2019
—EEHF —T—h"E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost FEIHR AR SRS E 93,496 133,525
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBIH AR ERIEE 40,805 46,908

154

(7

Fair value measurement

() Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value
Investment in unlisted equity securities is measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period on a recurring
basis. The fair value measurement of investment in
unlisted equity securities is categorised as Level 3 which is
measured using significant unobservable inputs, as defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

The Group's finance department performs valuations for
the Level 3 financial instruments. The finance department
reports directly to the management and the audit
committee. A valuation report with analysis of changes
in fair value measurement is prepared by the finance
department with external valuation specialists appointed
by the Group at the end of each reporting period, and is
reviewed and approved by the management. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the management
and the audit committee is held once a year.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

26

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (@)

(f) Z2FEEE (E)
() BATFEFEZZMEE

value (Continued) REE #)

The following table provides information about Level 3 fair TREHERE=MRLTFE

value measurement: BZEK

Financial assets Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input

EREE HEHRN EARAHRRAARE

Unlisted equity instruments Market comparable Discount for lack of marketability of 20%
companies

JFLEmRATA MG A LB A ] IR Z AT EHE M REER20%

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments was
determined using price/earnings ratios of comparable
listed companies adjusted for lack of marketability
discount. The fair value measurement was negatively
correlated to the discount for lack of marketability. At
31 December 2019, it was estimated that with all other
variable held constant, a decrease/increase in discount for
lack of marketability by 10% would had no significant
impact on the Group's other comprehensive income.

FEERRATRAZ AFEFER
AR EHABZ HRELRT
thz oI E MR IRETT AR
BT ATEtERRZAH
ENZEBEBREMGR KT
E—-NE+"A=+—H8" 14
FEMBHMESRFERAE
BR T MEAZ AT E R D
SIBINBEIR10% WAL B H
QUESETEERIEE N -2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

156

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

26 HMREGEERESRTAA
TE (4B)

() ATFEHE @)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BAFEAEZZHEE
value (Continued) KREIE (&
The movement during the year in the balances with Level FR ZEZRATENELS
3 fair value measurements are as follows: EREBIUIT ¢
Investment
in equity
securities
N
BE
(note 13)
(M45E13)
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2019 N2 —hF—HF—H 500
Changes in fair value recognised other REMEEmWEGEPREE 2 A FEES
comprehensive income (348)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZ2—AF+ZA=+—HBk
RW_E2_EF—H—H 152
Disposal HE (152)
At 31 December 2020 WZ_E2_ZF+_F=+—H —

During the year ended 2020, all equity securities measured
at FVOCI were disposed of and loss on disposal of
HK$152,000 is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(i) Financial assets/liabilities carried at other than fair
value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M ERRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

27 EXAERR B R

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEZENSFH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEEFTEEEASHNEIEN
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as TP BE 2 B AN A B 8 B IR K M
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as e ENETERSHMES
disclosed in note 8, is as follows: IR SEIBUS

2020 2019

=% —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

Short-term employee benefits ZHEEEH] 5,482 5,208
Post-employment benefits BB ET 110 92
5,592 5,300

(b) Material related party transactions (b) EXMESXKE
Except as disclosed in the note 29(c), the Group has not entered HEZ - ZER_FT-NE+Z
into any material related party transactions during the years A=+—HLEFE > RH5E29(c)Pr#
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. S A K B M 5T A7 AE el 8 K B

B 50

(c) Balances with related parties () HFELBRZAR
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company's REESAMZAERR A AT ZH
statement of financial position (note 30(a)). iR RN E (5E30@)) ©

£ V/ 2
28 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE HEHRRIFAEEIE

REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have other significant events after the reporting
period.

AEBUTERNBESABELEHMEKRSE

Ho
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AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

29 SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December (a)

158

2020 and 2019

29 MEBRFE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

R-E_EFEFR_FE—NF
+ZB=+—HZHEAF

H1E

TREHATE

TEREEEA

BEEREBEZMNBRBRZFE &
SAEERN FERDZEHEE

stated. BhG o
Country of incorporation  Particulars of issued Proportion of effective Proportion of effective Principal
Name of company and operation and paid up capital ownership interest ownership interest activity
MR BTk BREER ERERE
AT%E BEFEER HRRAHN Rt Rt EEE
2020 2019
ke 5 it Sy ik
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
=t f3 B# i
Aurum Pacific Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative
services
RREEEERAT &% 1Rk (1871) RETEAR
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
(HK$7,200,000) provision of software
platform
BENRARAR B8 363,636/ %17 REERREHAGT A
(7,200,000%5)
KanHan Technologies China Limited (notes ~ PRC HK$1,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of software platform
(i), (i) and (i)
BMNEERRKBRAR (=0 ()RK(i) HE 1,000,00037% REtgHETE
Aurum Pacific Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 100% - 100%  Provision of money lending
business
REMHERAD &% 1Rk (17571) RENEEH
First Surplus Investment Ltd. BVI 10 shares of US$1 each - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
First Surplus Investment Ltd. EERYHS 10REREE REZR
1ETHIRI
Mooff Games Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development and provision of
(HK$10,000) mobile data solutions and
related services
Mooff Games Limited B8 10,0008 843 RERRHEHBIERAS
(10,000%7z) FRIERIRE
Side Quest Limited Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development and provision of
(HK$4,510,001) mobile data solutions and
related services
Side Quest Limited B8 3,020,0008 %17 RERRHEHBIERAS

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M ERRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

29 MIEXE (8

(a) Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December () RZEFEZEFFR-F—NIF
2020 and 2019 (Continued) +tZA=+—HZHEBAE
FF15 ()
Country of incorporation  Particulars of issued Proportion of effective Proportion of effective Principal
Name of company and operation and paid up capital ownership interest ownership interest activity
Bl BTk BRERR BRERE
AT%E BEfEER HRRAEN Rt R TEEH
2020 2019
ZECEf g
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
=t f3 B# i
Smart City Technology Limited Hong Kong 12,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
(HK$1,010,000) and applications
ERETRRERAT &% 12,0008 813 REFREARER
(1,010,000%70)
Top Banana Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
and related services
BEARAR B8 1R (17%E7) REF BB RBMERS
Lasting Surplus Investment HK Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Tailor made IT solutions
(HK$10,000)
RBERERAR B8 10,0008 815 EREAREAE
(10,000%7%)
ENZEREBRAE (hote () PRC RMB3,600,000 - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
and related services
BMZERBERAG (HE)) HE AE3,600,0007 REFRBRIR AR
Notes: MdEE
(i) Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under the PRC law. (i) REPRLZEZMAIEEE D
Fo
(i) The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official (i) ENEBLEERBEZ-FAXLBAE
name of the entity is in Chinese. BrERAME
(iii) Deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2020. (ifi) REE_S-_EF+_HB=+—H
L\FEFEEUH R o
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMHEBELE

On 25 November 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interests in Create Winner Investments Limited (“Create
Winner”) and Easy Winner Investments Limited (”Easy
Winner”) to independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) and
the outstanding balances of HK$484,000 and HK$1,005,000
owed by Create Winner and Easy Winner to the Group for total
considerations of HK$484,000 and HK$ 1,005,000 respectively.

RIZ2EZE2F+—A-+HH =K
EERBELE=S (BEAH) HER
Bl ERRAT (TAIH.) Ri2
BrhEARAR (MEBE)) 2250
RERAY MBS XN AEEZ R
B3R 45 837484,00078 7T K 1,005,000
BT MBS B %484,0008 7T K&
1,005,0007 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(MUETTF)TR)
29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 29 MIBAE (&)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) HEHELRE (4B)
On 29 December 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity RZEZEF+ZAZ+ N B>
interests in Creative Good Investments Limited and its wholly AEBHERIRAKLEERAT
owned subsidiary, Bright Energy Investments Joint Stock REZ2EWE A ABBright Energy
Company, (together with “CG Group”). All the obligations and Investments Joint Stock Company (4778
liabilities owning or incurred by these subsidiaries have been [CGEHR)) Z22RE-ZEWE
disposed to an independent third party for cash consideration of NEIRNBELEZMBEEREE
HK$1. HEHEFT—RBUE=F 8%
REAHIBTO
The assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries disposed at STERBHHEZZENBERARZ
completion date comprise of: BERBESRE:
Create Easy
Winner Winner CG Group Total
=L BE CGEH ft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FATT FHT TR
Right-of-use assets FREEE 24 1,053 = 1,294
Prepayments SEENES 7 6 - 13
Other receivables H IR = = 9 9
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBY - = 2 2
Other payables HEMA® (12) (34) (12) (58)
Amounts due to the Group N ANEBMIE (472) (971) = (1,443)
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of BHE (B /EBEZE (236) 54 (1) (183)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEMBAR 2 W,
subsidiaries, net (F518) /338
Cash consideration HERE N 484 1,005 —* 1,489
Assignment of amounts from the & FEANE BRUIBE
Group to the Purchasers Rid=Val 3 (484) (1,005) = (1,489)
Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of BHEEE/ (BE) FE 236 (54) 1 183
Cumulative exchange gain REERBARE
reclassified from equity to HmEmEMOEE
profit or loss upon disposal of B RETIME @
subsidiaries - - 2 2
236 (54) 3 185
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from HEHBARFMBFRE
disposal of subsidiaries WA/ () 2%
Cash consideration received BUEREAE 484 1,005 =0 1,489
Cash and cash equivalents disposed B HERE RIS EEY - - ) )
484 1,005 (2) 1,487
* The cash consideration is HK$1. - RERBER1ETTC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 29 MIBATE (48)
(c) Acquisition of a non-controlling interest (c) WKEBIFEREZ

On 5 May 2020, the Group acquired an additional 20% of
the issued shares of a 80% owned subsidiary, Global Ocean
International Holdings Limited (“Global Ocean”) for a cash
consideration of HK$1 from Zheng Yonggiang.

Zheng Yonggiang is the non-executive director of the Group
up to 1 January 2021 and, therefore, is considered as a related
party to the Group up to his resignation. The acquisition of 20%
equity interests from Zheng Yonggiang constituted a related
party transaction. The carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in Global Ocean as at the date of acquisition was a
deficit of HK$316,000. As a result, the Group recognised an
increase in a non-controlling interest of HK$316,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$316,000.

The effects of changes in ownership interest in Global Ocean is

summarised as follows:

RIZEZZEFRARHR AEEMA
EoX SR B 80 % R M B A
B EBREEZERAERAR (DEE)
REIP20% BTG BERER
ABITe

BEEZZ—F—HF—H EKA
AAEEIENTES AL - BEH
BE EWRANEBZBEAL.
B ER K3 BE20% R IR A —18
REALR S - RUWHEBEHE EEIE
R 2 BREE 2 75 316,000
Too At A E R IFER I 1Y
1N316,0008 T R4~ Bl A AFE(L
&R /10316,00058 7T

EBFARER S FERLN
s

HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount of a non-controlling BUNEIEERER 2 REE
interest acquired (316)
Consideration paid to a non-controlling interest S FIEERERZ AE =
Excess of consideration paid KRN EHMERPER 2
recognised in other reserve within equity BAREBEED (316)
e The cash consideration is HK$1. * RERER 1Bt
HRFREEBRAR 161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LLABTTHIR)
29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 29 MiBAT (&)
(d) Information of material non-controlling interest (d) EAFZERER (TTEEZERE
(“NCI”) ) BEH

TREVERFEEBERIFERE
mZFSEEZ Bk I BERH
ERTARBHIEA 2 £

The following table lists out the information relating to FS
Group which has material NCI. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before any

inter-company elimination.

2020 2019
—E-TH —Z—hnEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
NCI percentage JEERETB DL 40% 40%
Non-current assets EREE 4,046 35,597
Current assets TMENE E 24,302 47,545
Current liabilities mENaE (27,996) (36,347)
Non-current liabilities EREAR = (5,192)
Net assets BEZFE 352 41,603
Carrying amount of NC| R R REE 141 16,471
Revenue & 327 2,926
Loss for the year FEEBIE (40,915) (14,420)
Total comprehensive expense 2B 48%E (40,825) (14,431)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIFERER R (16,330) (5,773)
Dividends paid to NC| IR EFRIERERR R - -
Cash flows generated from/(used in) KEEEFE PR 2
operating activities, net REMEFER 3,103 (17,957)
Cash flows used in investing activities, net & EFEFTAZ RS R4 (2,763) (2,997)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from REES FrA) P8z
financing activities, net BB REFEE (4,175) 16,842
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LLABTTHIR)

TRBEZMBER
(a) HFERFZE

30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 30

(a) Statement of financial position

2020 2019
—E_EF —Z—NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE 8 8
Investment in equity securities BARESZKE - 152
8 160
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS K B A Bl 7k 1A 96,812 188,480
Deposits, prepayments and other & AR R E M ERR
receivables 33 5,175
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIBSEEY 8 497
96,853 194,152
Current liabilities meaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries T B A B =IB 20,468 42,820
Other payables and accrued charges HAMFE N U et & A 884 185
21,352 43,005
Net current assets RHEERE 75,501 151,147
NET ASSETS HEFE 75,509 151,307
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital [ 50,906 50,906
Reserves Gz 24,603 100,401
TOTAL EQUITY R AR 75,509 151,307
BEPEERERAT 163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e M RR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UETTHR)

30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 30 ARBZHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual (b) ZERAFAELZRFEER
components of capital and reserves during the HREES S Z BB IEUT -
year:

Fair value
reserve
Share Share Capital Capital (non-  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus recycling) losses Total
AT
& k&R Xt EARER (FIEs) iR a3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TR TER TER TER TER

(note 25(b)i)
(Bz£2500)))
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h%-F-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 - (174,426) 261,840
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEFERZAMAR
for the year - - - - - (110,185) (110,185)
Equity investments at FVOCK: BAVOCE 82 RARE |
Net movement in the fair value ATEREEHIE (F728)
reserve (non-recycling) - - - - (348) - (348)
- - - = (348) (110,185) (110,533)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&+-B=+-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (348) (284,611) 151,307
At 1 January 2020 RZE-Z%-H-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (348) (284,611) 151,307
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEFRR2AEIAR
for the year - - - - - (75,646) (75,646)
Equity investments at FVOC: B0 EZRARE
Loss on disposal in the fair value HENTEREZSE
reserve (non-recycling) (RaEs) - - - - - (152) (152)
- - - - - (75,798) (75,798)
Transfer of fair value reserve (non-recycling) REERNOCEEZ
upon the disposal of equity investments s
measured at FVOC| NTERE (RS - - - - 348 (349) -
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FE+-B=+-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 = (360,757) 75,509
(c) Contingent liabilities () EEAEE
At 31 December 2020, the Company has issued a corporate NZEZTF+HB=+—8, &
guarantee in respect of a loan made by a bank to a subsidiary NEIFLIRITENBARREZER
(see note 20). REATER (RMEE20) ©
The Company had issued corporate guarantee in respect of the RZE2E—AFE+ZA=+—H'=RK
motor vehicles under leases at 3.5% — 4.8% per annum with REFRBEE SRS F35%—4.8%
the carrying amount of approximately HK$2,158,000 as at 31 MESBETABRER REEBELY
December 2019. #2,158,0007 7T ©
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AT ER R I 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(WUHETTHIT)

30

31

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(c) Contingent liabilities (Continued)
The fair value of these guarantees has not been provided for in
these consolidated financial statements as the directors of the
Company consider the amount involved to be insignificant.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are
factors to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth in note 2.
The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the
most significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Impairment loss on intangible assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value
in use, the expected cash flows generated by the intangible
assets are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of future software
revenue and the amount of service costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of software revenue and the amount of service costs,
and discount rate.

30 zlg/'\

31

ZHBER (8

(c) EAEME (#)
IS EHBRRL WREZSHE
RZATE BRFANEEDA
Y Rz SRR TEA

g ath st RFER

i Bt R M & AT R4 A LUBEAS
BREMAR @EERLEER TR
SRIE 2 SR Bk

EERGREMBRERS FESETEY
STEERZ B~ R BT 5t BURIE B 2 #I

REMAEERZ  URFMEREEES
BREZERRBREHTE OIEﬁ?EJrBZ
RN - AEEBRE THERES
BRI RERRIGEMHREFRAZ R
EEH R R 5t o

(a) EEBEREER
MARAHERAZ AR EEZREE
BRER LGTETRESER
SEREBRIREE EHR LT
T BB B AR B & R 2 AT 1R E]
e

FIUR[E] BB 23 A PR R & o As 2
EREEHZRESE - EEEAE
BF BHETVEEELEZRERM
ENMREEHRE MEERER
AR R R 1 Wi B AR 755 A A <2 BEAF
HE KA E o AEEER TR E
BzER BEEANREERGEY
B AERBESERENZ

R Fe FEA » il 5T 80 1 W 2t e AR 75
PRA T BRI IR o
BpTEERERAR 165
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31 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

166

()]

(9]

(d)

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are set out in note 12.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses. As these
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management's assessment is constantly received and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered; conversely, the carrying amount of a
deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Details of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets
are disclosed in note 22(b).

Impairment allowances on financial assets at
amortised cost and contract assets

The Group estimates the loss allowances for financial assets at
amortised cost and contract assets by assessing the ECLs. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the end
of the reporting period. Where the estimation is different from
the previous estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost and contract
assets and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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et st R Al (8)
(b) EERERE

(c)

(d)

EEBESTRER ARENK
HEZHRSELBUZERBERF
Bttt EERBER > EEAM
SHEMREREEEBUZ ARKIE
ERERBEMIRE U HERE
REBEZ StEFEHNMEE12.

TEIERIBEEF A AR EARGRE
FERD - AN EIE IR E E(ETEFIAE
ARRERRGEF UERARBAR
HEMNZIBRTHESR BEEEAM
SRR ERIR G Z P AE M 1F
H) i o i AR R FEER AR R BE AT
MIBEHEATRE IEEEREG
TR WHEBEEIMNELIRRE
E; Rz EERBEEEREET MU
R > LU BRI BE R B S0 FEER AR i
FIALURH B O N2 EELEIRBE
EZRmRR AMIELERBEE
ZMHERIREEF BRI EE22(b)K

Ego

BEBHERLAEZZHEE
BERNBEZREEE
FEREBTEBEREEBRE B
REHN AT EZEMEER AN
BEMSEEER - ILRBE2ER
st R - R EEBERREE
BBt EaRRgER LREE
BAZHERRURREHRE
RSB R IR i R BRI Z 5T 4 F
SAEEME i il 518 RIS Rl fl st
EREERTBRBENAAEZ
TMEERGNEEZIREE #
RS EBRE R ERR-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(MUETTF)mR)

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 32 BE_T_EF+_A=1+—
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED HILFEEBRMHERKERZ
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR BT MR R 22 BER
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the EEZEROVBRREEHN 58T
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, FHENAE BIRM L IRES] R—IEHEH]
HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, which are not yet effective for the EEMBREERNE 17 RREH B
year ended 31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in REEZZZEF+ZA=1+—HILHFE
these consolidated financial statements. These include the following BARER R ERZEFEEMBERERRN
which may be relevant to the Group: RN Hp B iE U Tl e A EEBR 2
ZEHI
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concession' EEUBREEN COVID-19EREHEE TR
MR CHEN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual ERBREER BISELRS |2
Framework? BIFETA
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: ARG AR W~ R Re sk
Proceeds before Intended Use? EALT AN BE RRAI AT S IIE?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling EBgst £ BEEEN-BITEHM
a Contract? EITH/IEFT P As?
Annual Improvements HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle? FENE ERP RS ER
“E-N\EE
T ZFE
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. 1 RIZ2ZZFXAE—HRZ2EBERANEE
AR AR o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 2 RIBZ_F—B—HRZERENFEE
AR &R o
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the RNEEIFETEZELEER YRR
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial BHEEZEE -FBERAL AEEE
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them will EE RN ZE BT M ERR A S AL
not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial B BERRELEEATE-
statements.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hAFEMBHE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEIEE Z-hEFE 2 N\F IZ—tF IZ2—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET FET FET
RESULTS E
Revenue from continuing and FERDRIEREER
discontinued operations 2 W 31,420 40,073 53,968 64,464 34,459
Loss before taxation PRI ATES 1B (93,155) (69,601) (43,534) (43,846) (40,351)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frismikse,/ Bx) 5,158 2,118 1,462 (1,889) 56
Loss for the year FEBE (87,997) (67,483) (42,072) (45,735) (40,295)
Attributable to: MFALRERS:
Owners of the Company EN/NCIEZ= DN (71,611) (61,470) (38,967) (48,823) (37,986)
Non-controlling interests FEPER R (16,386) (6,013) (3,105) 3,088 (2,309)
(87,997) (67,483) (42,072) (45,735) (40,295)
Loss per share SREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (B (5.63) (4.83) (3.21) (4.50) (5.22)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
Total assets BERE 159,519 260,698 324,784 405,730 451,871
Total liabilities BEEE (44,688) (57,979) (54,208) (123,350) (153,427)
114,831 202,719 270,576 282,380 298,444
Total equity attributable to KABVER AL
owners of the Company R 485 114,690 186,544 248,383 257,107 276,259
Non-controlling interests FEER R 141 16,175 22,193 25,273 22,185
114,831 202,719 270,576 282,380 298,444
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